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4 CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT =& &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Yue
Kan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for
the year ended 31 May 2021 (the “Year”).

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) have been successfully listed
(the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 December 2020 (the “Listing Date”).
The Listing marked a new milestone for the Company and its future
development, as it further strengthens our market position by broadening
our client base, providing capital for our expansion, maintaining our
competitive edge in marine construction works industry during the
forecast drop in gross output value in Hong Kong between 2022 and 2026
and reinforcing the Group’s image as a well-established company.

The Group is a Hong Kong-based marine construction works subcontractor
specialising in reclamation works and supplemented by vessel chartering
services and other civil engineering works. During the Year, the Group
continued to focus on marine construction projects as subcontractor and
actively sought after main contractor opportunities since the Group was
admitted as an approved contractor under Group B (Probation) of the port
works category in the List of Approved Contractors for Public Works in
October 2019. During the Year, the Group had successfully tendered and
was awarded one marine construction project and two vessel chartering
arrangements as main contractor with total contract sum of approximately
HK$23.7 million.

The Group’s revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$345.6
million, representing an increase of approximately 10.2% from that of the
previous year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
excluding the effects of the listing expenses was approximately HK$41.0
million. After taking into account the listing expenses, profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the Year was approximately HK$37.6
million.
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Despite the outbreak of COVID-19 has temporarily and adversely
affected the market sentiment and dampened the local economy in
general, we are conservatively optimistic towards the outlook and
prospects of the Group’s business and will continue to explore other
suitable business opportunities and execute our business strategies,
which may include possible expansion beyond the Hong Kong market
in the future. Nonetheless, the Group will continue to implement a
series of precautionary measures to ensure a hygienic and safe working
environment for our employees to achieve long-term sustainability of the
Group under the ongoing development of the COVID-19 pandemic (the
“Pandemic”).

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deep gratitude
to our Shareholders, investors and business partners for their continuous
trust and support. With the successful listing, we will continue to identify
and seize suitable growth opportunities in the coming years.

Heung Che Kan
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 9 August 2021
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OUTLOOK

During the Year, the overall market conditions of the construction industry
in Hong Kong have been relatively stable, however it is expected that
the uncertainties due to the ongoing development of COVID-19 shall
continue to affect the economic recovery of Hong Kong temporarily. The
top priority of the Group is the health and safety of our staff, customers
and business partners, which in turn will allow the Group to continue its
business development.

To optimise our competitive advantages, we will continue to explore
suitable business opportunities and execute our business strategies.
While the Group shall continue to maintain its relationship with existing
customers, it shall also expand its customer base to capture opportunities
from new customers and respond to the changing customer’s demand
by adapting accordingly in a timely manner. We believe that our proven
track record and the experience from various types of projects will enable
us to provide a wide range of quality and professional services to our
customers, potential customers and react to the changing needs of our
customers more efficiently and effectively.

The Board also believes that the Listing has enhanced the Group’s
image in the construction industry in Hong Kong, and has contributed
significantly towards the relationship building with our current and
potential customers. With our proactive business strategy in the coming
year, the Group strives to create greater value to our shareholders and
investors.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is a Hong Kong-based marine construction works subcontractor
specialising in reclamation works and supplemented by vessel chartering
services and other civil engineering works. The Company’s Shares were
successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 7 December 2020. Since the Listing, there has been no
significant change to the principal business operations of the Group.
The Group recorded total revenue of approximately HK$345.6 million,
profit attributable to its owners (before and after listing expenses)
of approximately HK$41.0 million and HK$37.6 million for the Year,
respectively.

Marine construction works

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue from marine construction
works of approximately HK$166.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.4% compared to that for the year ended 31 May 2020 (i.e.
HK$186.3 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
of sizeable marine construction projects undertaken by the Group during
the Year and three out of five projects on hand as at 31 May 2021 were in
their early or later stage of construction.
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Gross profit of marine construction works for the Year was approximately
HK$39.6 million, representing a slight increase of approximately 0.3%
as compared to approximately HK$39.5 million for the year ended 31
May 2020. The overall gross profit margin of marine construction works
increased slightly from approximately 21.2% for the year ended 31 May
2020 to approximately 23.7% for the Year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the final account of two marine construction projects
completed in the prior year having been certified to the Group during
the Year, with additional work done agreed and granted to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2.9 million. In addition, two of the
projects which involved regulation and deposition of sand blanket works
and reclamation works were completed or substantially completed during
the Year, these two projects carried a higher gross profit margin and
contributed approximately HK$66.2 million or 39.7% of total revenue from
marine construction works during the Year.

Other civil engineering works

During the Year, the revenue derived from other civil engineering works
amounted to approximately HK$160.4 million (year ended 31 May 2020:
HK$123.7 million), accounted for approximately 46.4% (year ended 31 May
2020: 39.4%) of the total revenue of the Group. The increase in revenue
derived from other civil engineering works was mainly attributable to the
commencement of three sizeable projects in Kowloon Tong, Kwai Chung
and Lamma Island, with initial contract sum of approximately HK$48.8
million, HK$26.8 million and HK$44.8 million, respectively.

Gross profit of other civil engineering works for the Year was
approximately HK$13.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
22.6% as compared with approximately HK$10.6 million for the previous
year. The overall gross profit margin of other civil engineering works
decreased from approximately 8.6% for the year ended 31 May 2020 to
approximately 8.1% for the Year. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to the relatively low profit margin of the Kowloon Tong, Kwai Chung
and Lamma Island projects during the Year as they accounted for
approximately 74.5% of the total revenue from other civil engineering
works. For the aforementioned projects, the Group’s principal role
primarily involved site supervision and coordination of works and
the Group had subcontracted a substantial part of the general civil
engineering works to subcontractors, which in turn led to a relatively low
gross profit margin in other civil engineering works segment.
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During the Year, the Group had undertaken 23 projects and the aggregate
initial contract sum amounted to approximately HK$691.9 million. Out
of the above 23 projects, 16 projects have been completed during the
Year and, based on the information available and barring unforeseen
circumstances, five projects are expected to be completed during the
year ending 31 May 2022 and two projects are expected to be completed

during the year ending 31 May 2023. Set out below is the information of

the projects undertaken by the Group during the Year:

TREEENRAREREAZENERNER

Site Location/Project Role Segment Type of Works Status
B4 B 1B B p==) Py TRREH R B
Three-runway system Subcontractor Marine construction works Regulation and deposition =~ Completed
at Chek Lap Kok Airport of sand blanket works
(the “3RS”")
TEBMEE-BERG(=Z 2687 BEEETIR WRENRELIETR (=199
WERL])
Pok Fu Lam Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works Completed
SEERM DER BERETIR HEBTR S50
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works Terminated
(Note 1)
BB DEE BEEETIR EBTIR B&IE
(B&ED)
Lok Ma Chau Subcontractor Marine construction works Sediment treatment works ~ Completed
BN DER BERETIR MEYERETIE B
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works In progress
R DEH BEEETIE HETRE TR
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works In progress
RR DEE BEEETIR EETR HEITH
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works Completed
RR DEE BERETIR EETIR BT
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works Completed
BB DER BEEETIR HETRE RE124
Kwai Chung/Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works Terminated
(Note 2)
BV DEE BEREETIR EETIR g1k
(F&E2)
Kai Tak Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works Completed
5 €6 DER BEEETRE HETRE B
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works Completed
L DER BEEETIE HETE B
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works In progress
BB DEE BREETIR HETIE HEITH
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works Reclamation works In progress
Y DER REETIR HBTR #E1TH
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Site Location/Project Role Segment Type of Works Status
o884 By 18 B == Py ] IEEH ik
Tung Chung Main contractor ~ Marine construction works Artificial reef trial works In progress
7 1 FGER BERETIR AT BRI TR
Shatin Subcontractor Marine construction works Construction works for In progress
rowing boat launching
facilities
WH DER BEEETIE XIME T KRR PR EE TR TR
Pok Fu Lam Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Foundation works Completed
SEERAR DEE Hh +RTHE A TIE =199
San Po Kong Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Foundation works Completed
EiipA DER Hth+KRTHE WETIE (w159
Kwun Tong Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Foundation works Completed
Bz DEE Efh £ RTHE HMETRE [R5
3RS Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Foundation works Completed
—HEEL DEA Hfh+RTH2 HEATE [
Kowloon Tong Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Foundation works Completed
JURRYE DB His £ RTiz2 HWETIR 25K
Kwai Chung Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Foundation works Completed
2R DEE Hfbh KT HETRE E5eRK
Kwai Chung Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Site formation works Terminated
(Note 2)
2R DEE Hbh+RITHE AR EE T2 g4k
(F3E2)

Lamma Island Subcontractor Other civil engineering works Foundation works In progress
MYS DER Hih+ AT HWETE #E1TH
Note 1:  The project was partially completed and subsequently terminated due Mzt . ZEEBOTRMEZERLE - BB E

to suspension of major construction works over certain period of time TRETRY (T —RERH - BREEERER

and price adjustments were not approved by the main contractor. THEAEEIR TR o
Note2:  In accordance with the original project timetable, the Group had Mizt2 - REBEREEEREEXR  FAEELHRGBEEE

It WAZBESPEREIRRE &
R B R ARIZTEE BRRBRIE
@I IR MR AT - FE - ANEE R ARER
EREZHRH  USKERTHE @I
MRPINEE REHER) - ER0RZERE
LREEER MZE-—F=H X~EHE
EHEENBL TRERAEABEKLESB
A4 BEFHYRTMIRATR IR BT
HHRE -

commenced its preparation work and allocated its employees and
plants/resources for this project, however, the main contractor failed
to handover work areas and provide design as per the project timeline.
The Group therefore initiated several rounds of negotiation with
the main contractor to seek for extension of time and/or additional
payment (such as idling and prolongation costs). Given the lack of
progress and circumstances with the project, in March 2021, the Group
agreed to terminate the sub-contract with the main contractor with
mutual consent and no claim of whatsoever nature against each other
in respect of this early termination.
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Vessel chartering services

During the Year, the revenue derived from our vessel chartering services
amounted to approximately HK$18.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 408.3% compared to that of the year ended 31 May 2020
(i.e. HK$3.6 million). The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in number of vessel chartering arrangements awarded and the generally
longer chartering period for these vessel chartering arrangements, led to
an increase in revenue for this segment during the Year. The gross profit
margin of vessel chartering services was approximately 18.6% and 23.5%
for the Year and the year ended 31 May 2020, respectively. In general,
the Group would usually derive a higher gross profit margin for shorter
chartering period, since the chartering period of those vessel chartering
arrangements for the Year were longer, the gross profit margin decreased
as compared with the year ended 31 May 2020.

As at 31 May 2021, there were six vessel chartering arrangements in
progress with estimated aggregate initial contract sum of approximately
HK$43.2 million. Out of the above six vessel chartering arrangements, five
vessel chartering arrangements are expected to be completed during
the year ending 31 May 2022 and one vessel chartering arrangement is
expected to be completed during the year ending 31 May 2025.

Otherincome

The Group's other income increased from approximately HK$0.3
million for year ended 31 May 2020 to approximately HK$2.7 million
for the Year. Such increase was mainly due to the recognition of
non-recurring government grants of approximately HK$2.6 million during
the Year from the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, while no such income was
recognised during the year ended 31 May 2020.

General and administrative expenses

The general and administrative expenses of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$9.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 9.0% compared to approximately HK$8.9 million for the
year ended 31 May 2020. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in legal and professional fee of approximately HK$1.4 million
offsetting reduced auditors' remuneration of approximately HK$0.6
million for the Year.
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Profit and total comprehensive income for the Year

Revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$345.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 10.1% from approximately
HK$313.7 million for the year ended 31 May 2020. Gross profit increased
by approximately 9.8% from approximately HK$51.0 million for the
year ended 31 May 2020 to approximately HK$56.0 million for the Year.
The overall gross profit margin of the Group remained largely stable at
approximately 16.3% for year ended 31 May 2020 and approximately
16.2% for the Year. In addition, due to an increase in other income and the
reduction in listing expenses, the total comprehensive income attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company increased by approximately
33.8% to approximately HK$37.6 million for the Year from approximately
HK$28.1 million for the year ended 31 May 2020.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group has funded its liquidity and capital requirements primarily
through capital contributions from Shareholders, cash inflows from
operating activities and proceeds received from the Listing.

As at 31 May 2021, the Group had bank balances of approximately
HK$124.5 million (31 May 2020: approximately HK$31.0 million). The year-
on-year increase was mainly due to proceeds received from the Listing
and cash generated from operation. The interest-bearing debts of the
Group as at 31 May 2021 was approximately HK$1.6 million (31 May
2020: approximately HK$7.3 million). As at 31 May 2021, the gearing ratio
of the Group, calculated based on the amount of total interest bearing
liabilities divided by total equity, was approximately 0.8% (31 May 2020:
approximately 7.3%), representing a decrease of approximately 6.5%.

Final dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for the Year
of 1.124 HK cents per Share to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 7 October 2021, being
the record date for determining the entitlement of Shareholders to the
proposed final dividend, amounting to approximately HK$25,000,000 in
aggregate, subject to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on Friday,
24 September 2021. The above-mentioned final dividend is expected to
be paid on or before Friday, 29 October 2021.
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Pledge of assets

As at 31 May 2020, the Group’s bank loan was secured by mortgage
over certain vessels of the Group with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$13.7 million. This loan was repaid prior to its maturity
date in January 2021 by internal resources. As at 31 May 2021, none of the
Group's assets was pledged.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and most of the operating
transactions such as revenue, expenses, monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Directors are of the view
that the Group's risk in foreign exchange is insignificant and that we shall
have sufficient resources to meet foreign exchange requirements if they
arise. Therefore, the Group has not engaged in any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk during the Year.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 May 2021, the Group employed 46 staff (31 May 2020: 47). Total
staff costs including Directors’ remuneration for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$31.2 million (year ended 31 May 2020: approximately
HK$28.0 million). Individual performance is rewarded through the
Group's salary and bonus system. The Group conducts annual review
on salary increase, discretionary bonuses and promotions based on the
performance of each employee.

During the Year, the Group has not experienced any significant problems
with its employees due to labour disputes nor has it experienced any
material difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff.

Capital commitments

The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 May 2021 (31 May 2020:
nil).
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 May 2021, a subsidiary has been named as defendant in one
employees’ compensation claim of which the amount of employees’
compensation claim was not stated in the employees’ compensation
application. The Board considered that the possibility of any material
economic outflow in settling the legal claim is remote as the main
contractor has agreed to indemnify the Group’s legal costs and
compensation and this claim is also covered by indemnity given by
the controlling shareholder of the Company. No provision for potential
liability has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

Significant investments held

As at 31 May 2021, the Group had no significant investments.

Future plans for material investments

The Group did not have other plans for material investments and capital
assets as at 31 May 2021.

Events after the reporting date

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or the
Group after 31 May 2021 and up to the date of this report.
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Use of proceeds from initial public offering and change in use of
proceeds

The net proceeds of the share offer received by the Company in relation to
the Listing (the “Net Proceeds”) were approximately HK$84.0 million, after
deduction of underwriting fees and commissions and all related expenses.
The original proposed application of the Net Proceeds was set out in the
paragraph headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 23 November 2020 (the “Prospectus”). Save for the
timing of the expected utilisation of the remaining net proceeds and the
type of equipment to be acquired by the unutilised Net Proceeds as set
out below, there was no material change in the use of proceeds as of the
date of this report. Given the continuous development of the COVID-19
situation, the Company will continue to evaluate and adopt a prudent and
flexible approach for utilising the Net Proceeds effectively and efficiently
for the long-term benefit and development of the Group. The expected
timeline of full utilisation is based on the Directors’ best estimation barring
unforeseen circumstances, and may subject to changes based on the
future development of market conditions. The table below sets out the
proposed applications of the Net Proceeds and usage up to 31 May 2021:

BRARBRERSREARRERFERE
Rz

RANGEHE B kAARBERXE  ARF
B AT RER BV A0 3 B PR IS FURF RR ([ T8 RK

HFREDARBA0A BB - XFMSHIBFER
MRERERAGEIINARBABEMA-_T_FTF

+T—AZ+=HBERER(BRER D RKE
EIRFERIERS | — o BT XFrilTE B A&
THEREFE BRI REEAREAMSRIEA
@%%Em GBI BEARREBR - 115
FIBRBWE AR ENEE o ERCOVID-19M
me RARBEETHTHAZEELSEN
R AREBENRBANGZEERMABRE 5K
KBRS IR SR - BHEA TEARREE
EEREEREBRTAER ZBER TAEN&E
ot - WIERBERRKTAERIELFE - TERE
NEE-ZE-—FHA=1+—HBHNFREHEFE
BERBMERER

Expected timeline

Actual Unutilised  of full utilisation
Planned usage up to amountasat  of the remaining
use of proceeds 31 May 2021 31 May 2021  net proceeds
HEZEC-F RIB--HF ZBIAKT
i8R ZA=+—HBH HA=+—B MFMBREFEZ
FEAR EREARR  KBANEE FAHREX
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THETT THETT THETT
Expanding fleet of vessels and site equipment 56,762 13,920 42,842 By end of May 2022
(Note) (Note)
BAMBR S8R 5 (F5E) (M) Z—ZE——FRAKH
Recruiting additional full-time staff to operate 11,961 871 11,090 By end of May 2022
additional vessels and site equipment to be
acquired
BRI EBETRIETUABENRIME —E - _FhAKA
P&
Recruiting additional full-time staff 3,758 1,058 2,700 By end of May 2022
EAEINDEBET —E - _FhAKA
Acquiring performance bonds and/or placing 7,118 257 6,861 N/A
tender deposit
ERBARES R TERZTS A
General working capital 4,360 1,398 2,962 By end of May 2022
REEE D —E-_FRAKR
83,959 17,504 66,455
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Note: Among the Net Proceeds of approximately HK$56.8 million planned to Miak © FHEIRREARME R BB EO TS HIBFEE

expand the fleet of vessels and site equipment, approximately HK$41.1 #9568 EBILH  WMABEBEBAELRISIESE
million and HK$15.7 million were originally allocated to acquire vessels BITREDDINBEMERMBRE - B
and site equipment, respectively. With a view to better meet the current FifiimE AR E B AT EBFRK - Liltiys6.8
business needs of the Group, approximately HK$5.2 million of the aforesaid BB H5.28 BB T (AFEFIEFEND
HK$56.8 million, representing approximately 6.2% of the Net Proceeds, 6.2% ' JREDELHEE B IR SR R S8 ) i 7 —
which were originally allocated for the acquisition of excavators and T _FRRARANEFSENBEREARLE
hydraulic hammer, have been re-allocated to acquire a crawler crane by 1 o

the end of May 2022.

As at 31 May 2021, approximately HK$17.5 million of the Net Proceeds had MRZB-_—FRA=1+—0 FAEFEFETLD
been utilised and the remaining of the Net Proceeds were deposited in 175EBBTEBA - EBRMAERIEFEEEA
interest bearing bank accounts of the Group with licensed banks in Hong REBRESFBRIBITO BHRITERP -

Kong.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Heung Che Kan (@& &]) (“Mr. Sherman Heung”), aged 66,
is the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) and executive
Director. Mr. Sherman Heung is responsible for the overall
strategic management and development of the Group’s business
operations. He was appointed as the Director on 24 May 2018 and
re-designated as the Chairman and executive Director on 24 May 2019. Mr.
Sherman Heung is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He
has completed a Shipboard Cargo Handling Basic Safety Training Course
and was awarded with a certificate of training in August 2016.

Mr. Sherman Heung possesses over 30 years of experience in marine
construction works and other civil engineering works, accumulated
from his employment and directorships in various construction and
construction related companies. His experience dates back to 1984 when
he, together with his business partners established his first construction
company, namely, Geoworks Contractor (HK) Limited for the provision
of construction services. As he gradually developed his experience,
knowledge and connection in the industry, he, together with his business
partners at the material time expanded their business over time and
established various private companies from 1985 to 1991 to provide
construction and related services which ranged from marine construction
works, other civil engineering works, marine plant leasing and vessel
leasing. Apart from his business establishment, Mr. Sherman Heung
also worked for various construction companies in the past where he
participated in numerous construction projects.

Mr. Sherman Heung is the father of Mr. Edwin Heung.
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Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade ( Z= B ¥k ) (“Ms. Lee”), aged 62, is the executive
Director and is responsible for the overall strategic management and
overseeing the human resources, financial and administration of the
Group's operation. Ms. Lee completed a Secretarial Studies Course from
City College of Commerce in May 1978 and obtained a Certificate for
Contractors’ Accounts issued by Vocational Training Council in July 1987.
In 1988, she also obtained a Certificate for Second Level for Book-Keeping
and Accounts from London Chamber of Commerce Examinations Board.
In December 1989, Ms. Lee completed the Fundamental Management
Certificate Programme at The Hong Kong Management Association
(“"HKMA”"). She then obtained a Diploma in Accounting for Managers, and
Marketing and International Business at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in November 1992 and November 1994 respectively. In July 2014,
she completed a Diploma in Training from Hong Kong Federation of Trade
Unions (“HKFTU") Spare-Time Study Centre. Ms. Lee further obtained
Distance Learning Certificates in How to Manage a Limited Company-
Company Secretarial Practices and Procedures, and in Events, Exhibitions
and Conferences Management from HKMA/HKFTU Spare-Time Study
Centre both in July 2014.

Ms. Lee has over 40 years of secretarial and accounting experience in the
construction industry. Before commencement of business of our Group in
2010, Ms. Lee worked for various construction companies or contractors as
a secretary or accountant from 1979 to 2010.

Mr. Heung Yue Wing ([E#7K) (“Mr. Edwin Heung”), aged 31, is the executive
Director and is responsible for overseeing the operational management
and quality control of the Group’s projects. Mr. Edwin Heung completed
his Bachelor of Aviation from the University of South Australia in
December 2015. Mr. Edwin Heung has been admitted to a Master of
Business Administration programme of the City University of Hong Kong
on part-time basis in September 2019.

Mr. Edwin Heung has approximately nine years of experience in providing
technical support to the Group. In 2016, he was designated as the
technical support officer and was primarily responsible for supporting
the 3RS construction works. He also led and participated in the patent
application of the Group’s special enclosed deposition method in the
PRC and Hong Kong. He was further promoted as our project technical
manager in May 2018 and was subsequently appointed as the executive
Director on 24 May 2019.

Mr. Edwin Heung is the son of Mr. Sherman Heung.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiu Tai Shing (B K &) (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 69, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2020. He is also
a member of each of the Nomination Committee, Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chiu is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issue of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

In June 1976, Mr. Chiu obtained a degree of Bachelor of Applied Science
from University of Toronto in Canada. He completed a course in the
Estimating Technology Il held by The Amalgamated Construction
Association of British Columbia in April 1991 and the 1992 Certified
Professional Course for Use and Occupancy Requirements at The
University of British Columbia in July 1992. He further obtained a degree of
Master of Science from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
2006. In September 2018, he further completed an executive program of
Artificial Intelligence: Implications for Business Strategy at Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, Sloan School of Management.

Mr. Chiu was registered as a professional engineer of Association of
Professional Engineers of Ontario in February 1981 and as a professional
engineer of The Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists
of British Columbia in August 1992. He was then admitted as a certified
professional of Union of British Columbia Municipalities in Canada in April
1993. Later on, he was admitted as a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers and a member of National Fire Protection Association in
March 2004 and September 2011, respectively. He was also appointed
as a professional assessment assessor of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers for the 2014/2015, 2015/2016 and 2017/2018 sessions.

Mr. Chiu has over 40 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry.

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 2h1% iR B FR A &)

BIUFMITES
BMAKEE(EBEE]) - 6955 * R-FT_FTF
T—AT=HREZERBIIFNTES - BT/
REHZEE BRZEGMFMEEESKE - £
TEERBERARERNRE - KB - BRRITAE
AIEEELEHE R RHER -

R—NEREFERA BRERMERZMZAE
ESERMEELEM - TR AN —FHAR
AT L TR B A REH SR MNHER
MIEREE - IR — NN —F L ATKRBI ML
REMINEAREAEBREEEEXRE - FR
TERERET A IREBPXABRGEE
BELITBM - R-ZF—/\FNLA  BE—FTZK
MERETBRELEEESRHATERE  BXH
REENFENTTHEIERIE

BEER—NAN—F-_AGMALTAKREHEET
ERMmpeRETRERM  YR— AL -F N\ A
AEET R A EETIRMEEERGeH
ETREM -HEER AN =ZFWAERAT A
MEXEBIRLETEEMBEASNREEEA
T EE FHRR_EENF=AR_T——
FAAERATEIRRMES S 8 REREH
hegs  c FMEZAASEIREMEBGR-Z
—E/ —E-HF —E-RF /T RF
M_ZT—+F /T \FHEETGHTEE -

AR T2 B IEEE R 40T L5 -



Mr. Wan Wai Wing (B EF %) (“Mr. Wan”), aged 43, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2020. He is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee. Mr. Wan is responsible for
providing independent judgement and advising on the issue of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

In November 2000, Mr. Wan obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Surveying from The University of Hong Kong. He then obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Laws from University of London (distance learning) in
August 2006. He further obtained the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws and
a degree of Master in Laws in Arbitration and Dispute Resolution from City
University of Hong Kong in July 2008 and October 2012, respectively.

Mr. Wan was admitted as a professional member of The Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors in May 2005. Later, he was admitted as an associate of The
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in July 2005. He was admitted as a
registered professional surveyor in the quantity surveying division of the
Surveyors Registration Board of Hong Kong in July 2006. Mr. Wan was
then admitted as a member and a fellow of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators in October 2012 and December 2012, respectively. He was
further admitted as a member of the joint panel of arbitrators of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors and Hong Kong Institute of Architects in 2013.
Subsequently, Mr. Wan was admitted as a fellow of Hong Kong Institute
of Arbitrators and a member of the panel of adjudicators of Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre in July 2014 and 2018, respectively.

Mr. Wan has accumulated extensive experience in the quantity surveying
and legal industry. He began his career as a quantity surveyor at Davis
Langdon & Seah HK Ltd. from July 2000 to June 2003. He then worked for
Consultant Associates (H.K.) Limited from July 2003 to May 2011 and his
last position held was assistant director. Subsequently, he joined Wong
& Lawyers (formerly named as Chan & Associates) as a trainee solicitor in
May 2011, and as a solicitor after his admission as a solicitor of Hong Kong
in July 2013.
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Mr. Fung Hoi Fung (&) (“Mr. Fung”), also known as Fung Hoi Fong
and Fung Bing Sun (51l%%), aged 62, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 13 November 2020. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Fung is responsible for providing independent judgement and advising
on the issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

In July 1985, Mr. Fung obtained an Accounting Diploma from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College. He then obtained a degree of Master of Professional
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2007.

Mr. Fung was admitted as an associate and registered as a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants in April
1997 and May 1999, respectively. He was then admitted as a fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in May 2002. Since
2008, Mr. Fung has been admitted as an ordinary member of The Society
of Chinese Accountants & Auditors. In June 2010, he was registered as a
Certified Tax Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fung has over 30 years of experience in the accounting and finance
industry. He worked for Glass Radcliffe & Co. Chartered Accountants,
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong from September 1985 to
September 1986 as an audit trainee and was promoted to audit team
leader in October 1986. He was further promoted to the position of audit
supervisor in January 1989 and remained in such position until he left
in April 1989. Mr. Fung then worked at Deutsche Morgan Grenfell Hong
Kong Limited from April 1989 to February 1997, with his last position as an
accounting manager. Later on, he worked for Glass Radcliffe Chan & Wee,
Certified Public Accountants from April 1997 to May 1998, as an assistant
manager. He then worked for Sun Sang (King Fung) Printing & Dyeing
Company Limited from May 1998 to May 2000 as a financial controller. In
January 2001, he founded Fung Hoi Fung & Co. and continued to operate
his accounting firm to the present.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Kwok Cheong (Bl &) (“Mr. Leung”), aged 46, was appointed
as the Group's project manager on 1 August 2018 and promoted as project
director on 1 August 2021. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Group's projects, daily monitoring of operation and
supervision of sites.

Mr. Leung obtained a degree of Bachelor of Engineering in Civil
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001.

Mr. Leung was elected as a chartered professional engineer member
of Engineers Australia in the Civil College in January 2008. He was also
admitted as a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers in June 2008
and registered as a chartered engineer by the Engineering Council
UK in August 2008. In October 2009, he was elected as a member of
The Institution of Highways and Transportation. In December 2018,
he obtained a Certificate of Accreditation from the Institution of Civil
Engineers of the United Kingdom for completion of the NEC3: Engineering
and Construction Contract Project Manager Accreditation and is eligible
for inclusion on the Register for Accredited NEC professionals held by the
Institution of Civil Engineers.

Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in the construction industry.

Mr. Wu Fook Cheung (#8f& %) (“Mr. Wu"), aged 65, is the Group’s marine
project manager. Mr. Wu joined the Group as a site manager in September
2016 and was promoted to the position of marine project manager in
May 2018. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group's projects, daily monitoring of operation and supervision of marine
project sites.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the construction industry. Mr.
Wu completed a 98-hour Technically Competent Person T1 Training
Course at the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education in February
2014. In 2014, he also completed the training courses for risk assessment,
hazard identification activity, working at height safety, accident
investigation and safety inspections conducted by the Occupational
Safety & Health Council.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yeung Ming Fai (15 &% ) (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 42, was appointed as
the company secretary of the Group on 24 May 2019. Mr. Yeung obtained
a degree of Bachelor of Engineering in Civil and Structural Engineering
(Environmental Engineering) from The University of Hong Kong in
November 2000, a degree of Bachelor of Laws from University of London
(distance learning) in August 2004, a Master of Laws from University of
Glasgow in December 2005 and the legal professional qualification of
PRC in February 2007. He further obtained the Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from City University of Hong Kong in July 2011 and was admitted as
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in August 2013.

Mr. Yeung worked for MWH (Hong Kong) Limited as a graduate engineer
during the period from September 2000 to July 2003. He then worked for
Zhong Lun Law Firm as a PRC trainee lawyer and subsequently as a PRC
lawyer from March 2007 to June 2009, and for Guanghe Law Firm as a PRC
lawyer from September 2009 to December 2010. He joined Robertsons
Law Firm as a trainee solicitor from April 2011 to May 2013 and was
employed by Cheung & Choy as a paralegal in July 2013 and worked there
until September 2013. He was the company secretary of Tianhe Chemicals
Group Limited, a company formerly listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from March 2014 to October 2017. He worked for CMK Lawyers
as consultant from November 2017 to January 2018 and joined Patrick
Mak & Tse as an associate solicitor in February 2018. He is currently a
partner of Patrick Mak & Tse.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in marine
construction works, other civil engineering works and provision of vessel
chartering services in Hong Kong. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year. Details
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The business review and outlook together with an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators of the Group for
the Year are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 15 of this annual
report. The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group
are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties, and risk management

The Group's business and operations is exposed to the following principal
risks and uncertainties:

Failure to guarantee new contract

The Group's revenue mainly relies on successful tenders of or acceptance
of tenders/quotations for marine construction works, vessel chartering
services and other civil engineering works which are non-recurring in
nature. In the event that the Group is unable to secure new contracts with
successful tenders or acceptance of quotations, or receive invitations for
quotations or tenders, the business and results of operations and financial
performance may be adversely and materially affected. The management
shall continue to seek new opportunities and develop the Group'’s existing
business.

Failure to diversify customer base by obtaining new projects from
existing and new potential customers

A significant portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from contracts
awarded by a limited number of customers and any significant decrease
in the number of contracts with major customers may materially and
adversely affect the financial condition and operating results of the Group.
In this connection, the Group shall continue to diversify and broaden its
customer base, where appropriate.
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Project cost overruns

The actual time and costs incurred in a marine construction or other
civil engineering projects, which partly form the basis of the price
determination of tenders/quotations, may deviate from the estimated
time and costs to be involved in such project due to unexpected
circumstances, thereby leading to cost overruns and adversely affecting
the operations and financial results of the Group. As such, the Group will
closely monitor and manage its project costs in an effective manner.

Outbreak of COVID-19

During the Year, the Pandemic has affected many businesses, both
locally and aboard, to different extents. Based on the currently available
information, barring unforeseen circumstances, the Directors consider
the Pandemic would not have a prolonged material impact to the Group’s
operations having taken into account the past experience and ongoing
circumstances. However, given the unpredictability associated with the
Pandemic and the contingency measures that may be implemented by
the relevant governments and corporate entities from time to time, the
impact of the Pandemic, if any, on the Group’s operations in future could
be significantly different from the aforesaid expectation depending on
how the situation evolves. The Group will closely monitor in this regard
and act prudently with a view to minimise the possible uncertain impact
arising from the Pandemic.

Industry risks

It is expected that during the forecast drop in the gross output value of the
marine construction works industry in Hong Kong between 2022 and 2026
(the “Forecast Downturn”), the Group will undertake significantly less
marine construction works due to the temporary decrease in reclamation-
related marine construction projects during the Forecast Downturn,
the result of which will also contribute to a change in project mix and
revenue contributions for the Group over the relevant period. Given the
comparatively lower gross profit margin of other civil engineering works as
compared with that of marine construction works in general, the expected
change in project mix by undertaking more other civil engineering
projects may cause the Group’s overall gross profit margin to decrease
and may adversely affect its financial performance.

For further details of the risks and uncertainties of the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of protecting the environment and
strives to minimise the impact to the environment by reducing use of
energies and other resources. During the Year, the Group did not record
any material non-compliance with applicable environmental requirements
that resulted in prosecution or penalty being brought against the Group.
During the Year, the Group was not subject to any environmental claims,
lawsuit, penalties or any disciplinary action. For further information in
relation to the environmental policies and performance of the Group,
please refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 51to 97.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that had a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or the
Group after 31 May 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group recognises its employees as its valuable assets and the
key to business growth and success. The Group provides competitive
remuneration package and benefits to employees to attract and retain
competent employees. The Group also provides on-the-job training
and development opportunities to employees to enhance their career
development.

The Group endeavours to develop and maintain long-term relationship
with customers by delivering excellent works and quality services to them.
The Group holds regular meetings with customers, when required, to
receive customers’ feedback to understand their needs and expectation.

The Group has strong and stable relationships with suppliers and
subcontractors in order to ensure that quality goods and services are
provided to the Group. Suppliers and subcontractors are assessed on
their performances, safety records, non-compliance track records and
environmental awareness on an on-going basis.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are included in the section headed
“Financial Summary” on page 180 of this annual report. Such summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 105
of this annual report.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for the Year
of 1.124 HK cents per Share to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 7 October 2021, being
the record date for determining the entitlement of Shareholders to the
proposed final dividend, amounting to approximately HK$25,000,000 in
aggregate, subject to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM to be held on Friday, 24 September 2021. The above-mentioned final
dividend is expected to be paid on or before Friday, 29 October 2021.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
To be eligible to attend and vote in the forthcoming AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 20 September 2021
to Friday, 24 September 2021, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible for attending
and voting at the forthcoming AGM, non-registered Shareholders must
lodge all duly completed and stamped transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 17 September 2021.

To qualify for the proposed final dividends

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 4
October 2021 to Thursday, 7 October 2021 (both days inclusive) during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. To be qualified for
receiving the proposed final dividends, all Share transfer documents
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 30
September 2021.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATION

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the Year (2020:
nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 May 2021, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$81,831,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 107 of
this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 33.0% and 84.5% of the Group’s total revenue, respectively.

During the Year, the largest subcontractor and the five largest
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 35.9% and
78.6% of the Group's total direct costs, respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 1.9% and 5.3% of the Group’s total
direct costs, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major customers, subcontractors or
suppliers above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Heung Che Kan (Chairman)
Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade
Mr. Heung Yue Wing

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chiu Tai Shing
Mr. Fung Hoi Fung
Mr. Wan Wai Wing

In accordance with article 108 of articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Further, according to articles 111 and 112 of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board or by ordinary resolution in general meeting
either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company. The Directors to retire at an annual general meeting of the
Company shall not be taken into account in determining who are to retire
by rotation at such annual general meeting.

At the forthcoming AGM, Mr. Heung Che Kan and Mr. Chiu Tai Shing shall
retire as Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) has been received from each of the independent
non-executive director and the Company considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date
which may be terminated by either party serving to the other party not
less than three months’ written notice of termination.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date which may be terminated by either
party serving to the other party not less than two months’ written notice
of termination.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transaction disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements, no Directors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or in
existence during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for the Year
falls within the following band:

BiREE RN
RAFE  AEESRERETHER THIHE

Number of person(s)

Band of remuneration N E AE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z T2 1,000,00075 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
As at 31 May 2021, the Group did not hold any investment property.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief
executives' interests and short positions in Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures” below, at no time during the Year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or the Company’s subsidiary or holding company or a subsidiary of the
Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement has been entered into during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Articles provide that every director shall be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a director in the execution of his duties or otherwise
in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to such director.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the contracts relating to the Reorganisation of the Group
in relation to the Listing and save as disclosed in this annual report, no
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which the controlling shareholders of the Company
or an entity connected with the controlling shareholders had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted since 1 June 2020 to 31 May
2021 or at 31 May 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by
the written resolution of the Company’s then sole Shareholder on 13
November 2020. The terms of the Scheme are in accordance with Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules and other relevant rules and regulations. Further
details of the Scheme are set forth in the section headed “Statutory and
General Information - D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus. No Share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme since its adoption on 13 November 2020 and
there is no outstanding Share option as at 31 May 2021.

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees (full-time and
part-time), directors, consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or service providers of our
Group and to promote the success of the business of our Group.

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may
think fit, grant options to any employees (full-time or part-time), directors
(including independent non-executive Directors), consultant, or advisor,
substantial shareholders, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, who have
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. Each grant of options
to any Director of the Company, the chief executive officer or substantial
shareholder of the Company must first be approved by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of the Shares issuable upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date i.e. 222,400,000 Shares.

The 10% limit may be refreshed at any time by obtaining approval of
Shareholders in general meeting provided that the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshed
limit. The Company may seek separate approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting in granting options beyond the 10% limit provided the
options in excess of the 10% limit are granted only to grantees specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Scheme and any other option scheme
of the Company in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine but shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

Minimum period

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the
time of grant.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for
the grant of an option is HKS1.
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Subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing
from 13 November 2020 and shall expire at the close of business on the
business day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by Shareholders in general meeting.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling shareholders or the Directors of the Company
and their respective associates is interested in a business apart from
the Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business since the Listing Date to 31 May 2021.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition dated 13 November 2020 (the “DNC") has
been entered into by Mr. Sherman Heung and Yue Hang Investment
Limited (“Yue Hang”, and collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”)
in favour of the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), with
an aim to avoid any possible future competition between the Group
and the Controlling Shareholders. Details of the DNC are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed their compliance with the
undertakings of the DNC for the Year. The independent non-executive
Directors had reviewed the undertakings and evaluated the effective
implementation of the DNC and considered that the undertakings of the
DNC have been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders during the
period from 1 June 2020 to 31 May 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 May 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
which were (a) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or (c) otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

(@) Long position in ordinary Shares of the Company

EEREETHRARKG « HERKG R
BHEPERRRE

RZEBE-_—FRA=1+—H EFRARFEE
TTBRABRARB SRR EE(EELEHFR
HAEEDI( 3B 5 R B E &G ) ExXVED Uik - 48
RARR (D Sk EEFE T E A @) IRIEFEF KB EIEGIE
XVERE 7 87 BB M E A NA B B R ATy i e )2
e (BEREES RS EGERE GRS Ek
RERBENERIKKXE)  Sib)RIBEES REAEEK
B 3521508 N BT E NS MAEES KA R
FORBEH N ETARRIM ST/ LB ITAEZS
ETBEFRZHEESTR([ZESFA])ESTA
SRR RBRANERRABSINT

(a) RELATEBRNHER

Percentage of

Number of Shares shareholding in

Name Nature of interest held/interested the Company
BEBEERN RARQEIH

=L EEME R B E REBD L

Mr. Sherman Heung Interest in a controlled corporation 1,668,000,000 75%

mEE L R rE R

Ms. Mok Man Yee Lisa Interest of spouse 1,668,000,000 75%

RHgRrt forE s

Notes: Bisr

1. Mr. Sherman Heung beneficially owns the entire issued share capital 1. MEZFREEEERYue Hang2 H 2 BT

of Yue Hang. Therefore, Mr. Sherman Heung is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by Yue Hang for the purpose of the
SFO.

2. Ms. Mok Man Yee Lisa is the spouse of Mr. Sherman Heung. Therefore,
Ms. Mok Man Yee Lisa is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the
Shares in which Mr. Sherman Heung has, or is deemed to have, an
interested in for the purpose of the SFO.
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(b) Long position in shares of the associated corporation of the
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(b) RARFEBEZERGHER

Company
Number of Percentage of
Name of the Nature Shares held/ shareholding in
Name associated corporation  of interest interested the Company
B8/ B8
) RARXTN
£ HEEE B E EEME RHHE REB L
Mr. Sherman Heung Yue Hang Beneficial owner 1 100%
RIS ELE EaEAA
Ms. Mok Man Yee Lisa Yue Hang Interest of spouse 1 100%
BEgRat f et
Notes: Pi3E

1. The issued share capital of Yue Hang is fully owned by Mr. Sherman
Heung.

2. Ms. Mok Man Yee Lisa is the spouse of Mr. Sherman Heung. Therefore,
Ms. Mok Man Yee Lisa is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the
shares in which Mr. Sherman Heung has, or is deemed to have, an
interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 May 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
interest or short position in Shares and underlying Shares of the Company
which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336

1. Yue Hang®E B{TRAMMAEE LA EHR
5o

2. EHRLZIRAEEHLEENRE - Bt - 3t
BEHRRERIITS - ERELIHRBH
iéST’EJ‘%Wi%ﬁ)f‘ii%ﬁ*ﬁi%&ﬁﬁ&*fﬁ%ﬁ
R FTA B in R A AR

TERRREO RIEFERGHRHERR
KE

RN_Z-_—FRA=Z+—H BEEMRH- L)(T
AL (FFESHARREBITHRAR)RAEAR
Hﬂ%ﬂﬁfﬁﬂﬂﬁt@%z&ﬁffi%fimﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬂlﬂﬁu%xv
EBEE2 M B3 FRIE XA M AR B LB X T B
REZRSORE - RSN IRIEES MBS K5
33615 AN B AEGFERNERMAERSSAR

of the SFO:
Percentage of
Number of Shares shareholding in
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest held/interested the Company
BEHEEREEN REDTH
REREHE EEME R BE RIEH DL
Yue Hang Beneficial owner 1,668,000,000 75%

EmlEAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 May 2021, none of the substantial
or significant Shareholders or other persons, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in Shares, underlying Shares and debentures” above, had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SECURITIES

No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities was
made from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
on pages 38 to 50 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the Laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s Shares.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Group had not entered into any non-exempted
connected transaction which requires relevant disclosure pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME BksTR

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund prescribed by the REBESEAH MHEABESF IR (BB ENE
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws ~ 485% ) FT&] BAMIR #IMEATES © BrATIME SN - K
of Hong Kong). Save as the aforesaid, the Group did not participate in any SERAFEL ST EARKEETE -
other pension scheme for the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS RBRAZH

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during REBRAFEFTLNBEE TR I FBENGE
the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. B RS TRERMIE25 -

AUDITOR 574 0]

AN s

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited AEEMGREUBEHRER AR EEE(FE) @
by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer MEBMERAREZ  HEEREFEERL

themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. FER BN BRMRRIBESE RS FEHMESEE -
On behalf of the Board REESFE

Yue Kan Holdings Limited BEERERAT

Heung Che Kan FIERBTEE

Chairman and Executive Director EEE

Hong Kong, 9 August 2021 B ZE—F)\ANHA
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The Board recognises the importance of achieving the highest standard
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and
protect stakeholders’ interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. Since the Listing Date and up
to 31 May 2021, the Company has complied with the provisions set out in
the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the guidelines for the
Directors’ dealing in the securities of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Heung Che Kan (Chairman) (appointed on 24 May 2018)

Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade (appointed on 24 May 2019)

Mr. Heung Yue Wing (appointed on 24 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chiu Tai Shing (appointed on 13 November 2020)

Mr. Fung Hoi Fung (appointed on 13 November 2020)

Mr. Wan Wai Wing (appointed on 13 November 2020)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 13 November 2020. The Company embraced the benefits of
having a diverse Board, as such, the Board Diversity Policy aimed to set
out the approach to maintain diversity of the Board. A summary of the
Board Diversity Policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below:

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills
and know-how. All Board appointments will be based on merits, and
candidates will be considered against selection criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and
know-how. The Company will use its best efforts to maintain not less
than 20% female representation in the Board by the end of 2024, subject
to Directors (i) being satisfied with the qualification and experience of
the relevant candidates after a reasonable review process based on
the relevant criteria; and (ii) fulfilling their fiduciary duties to act in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole when making
the relevant appointments. The Company will also ensure that there is
gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior levels such that the
Company will have a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successor to our Board in a few years’ time in future.

Monitoring, Reporting and Review

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the
Board annually in the corporate governance report and monitor the
implementation of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) on 13
November 2020 in respect of the selection and appointment of Directors
with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives suitable for the Company’s business.

Selection Criteria as the Measurable Objective

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration to
criteria including but not limited to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(@) Skills, knowledge and experience which are relevant to the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(b) Diversity to compliment the existing composition of the Board
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how;

() Commitment to ensure the devotion of sufficient time to carry out
their duties to attend board meetings and to participate in induction,
trainings and other board associated activities, and reasonable
consideration against the numbers of their services on other listed
and non-listed companies’;

(d) Integrity and character that satisfies the Board and the Stock
Exchange; and

(e) Independence in particular for independent non-executive Directors
as required under the Listing Rule.
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Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following respective
procedures and process:

(i)  For the appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee
may take measures that it considers appropriate in connection with
its identification and evaluation of a candidate. Upon compilation
and interview of the list of potential candidates, the Nomination
Committee will shortlist candidates for consideration by the Board
based on the Criteria and such other factors that it considers
appropriate;

(ii) For the re-election of Director subject to retirement obligations
pursuant to the Articles at general meeting of the Company, the
Board shall consider and, if consider appropriate, recommend such
retiring Director to stand for re-election at general meeting; and

(iii) For the appointment through nomination by Shareholders to stand
for election as a Director at a general meeting, a Shareholder circular
containing, among others, biographical details of such nominated
candidate, must be lodged with the company secretary of the
Company within the lodgment period, thereafter, a supplementary
circular containing particulars of the candidate so proposed will be
sent to all Shareholders for information.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board has the final authority on
determining suitable candidate for appointment as Director.

Monitoring, Reporting and Review

The Nomination Committee will assess and report annually, in the
corporate governance report, on the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
7 December 2020 which does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. According to the Dividend Policy, in considering the
payment of dividends to allow Shareholders of the Company to
participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for
the Group’s future growth, the Board shall consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
the general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

the expected working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans of the Group;

the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the other members of the Group;

the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio and return on equity as
well as financial covenants to which the Group is subject to;

the Group's liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividends;

the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time;

the general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable
laws and regulations including the laws of Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Bye-laws. The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy
from time to time. There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid
in any particular amount for any given period.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS EFgRTRTEE

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of BrmBSREE "S- —FHRA=+—HHME
the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the REFHFEEST  FEXZET  FTMHEZEESR
Nomination Committee during the period from the Listing Date to 31 May REZEgEHE2ERE RSN T

2021 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

b BITEBRRH
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EEHR EEEER EREEY FMEES REEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Heung Che Kan MEE LA 2/2 - - -
(Note) (Fff7E)
Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade ZRATR LI 2/2 - - -
Mr. Heung Yue Wing MK E 2/2 - - -
Independent BIFHITES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chiu Tai Shing BR KRB S 2/2 11 - -
(Note) (Pff7E) (Note) (Pff7E)
Mr. Fung Hoi Fung TSERE 2/2 1/1 - -
(Note) (Ff15E)
Mr. Wan Wai Wing BET RS 1/2 11 - -

(Note) (Ff5T) (Note) (i 5T)

Note:  Due to the fact that the Shares had been listed on 7 December 2020, no Wit : ARBOHER-Z=ZF+-_AtBLm &

Remuneration Committee meeting and Nomination Committee meeting EROITMNEESERARREREEEER &
had been held. These meetings will be held in 2021 accordingly. ZeZBRN T - —FH8To

Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are prepared and kept by EEgea LT E RN R EARA RN
the company secretary of the Company and are open for inspection by RAMERERRT  WAHEEZSER - 57
Directors. Directors may seek external professional advice in appropriate FHEBATSIIINGEEER - BABHLTQF
circumstances at the Company’s expenses. XA e

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in RATE LA ERE - WREHHES 2FM
respect of any legal action against Directors. SERITED ©
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Role and responsibilities of the Board and management

The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, to discharge their duties in the best interests of
the Company and its Shareholders. The Board is responsible for the overall
management of the Group’s business and affairs by establishing the
overall strategies, setting objectives and business development plans.

The Board has delegated its powers to the management for day-to-day
management of the Group’s operations. Under the leadership of the
executive Directors, the management is responsible for implementing the
strategies and plans established by the Board and the implementation of
the risk management and internal control systems.

Directors’ training and continuous professional development

All Directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. All Directors
have participated in continuous professional development and the
individual training record of each Director received during the Year is as
follows:

ESeREEENBERSHE
EEEMEARASHETRE FEEE A
NARBRERROSENRBETRE -EF2
BPHIRIEERE  REBEAREHERTE
BREAKENEBEREHONEREE -

%%@EH%ZK%@E@%%ZEI%%ﬁﬂ’\]ﬁéﬂﬁ%
BEE - TEEAENTEFNEET  BRE i
BTN R YEHEEA QE@&W
EREETR R4

EENRIIRGEEXREE

PREFED2HEFBEFTEHR I INMEFHEM
E%HD& CEREAEESFLABLRERNE
Bl- 2REZHE2ABBEZEERRINAF
B WEMEESZERIEIIRREENT

Attending seminars/
reading material
relevant to the
director’s duties

HEFNE

MEEEEN
Name of Director EEHE BEBBEME
Mr. Heung Che Kan Mg EE v
Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade ] Yo Vv
Mr. Heung Yue Wing MK ST E v
Mr. Chiu Tai Shing BRARAC ST v
Mr. Fung Hoi Fung SRS AE v
Mr. Wan Wai Wing IRBTER S V

Each of the Directors complied with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed by the
Company for a fixed term of three year, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles, which may be terminated
by either party serving to the other party not less than two months’
written notice of termination.

During the Year, the Company had three independent non-executive
Directors which represent more than one-third of the Board members,
and that at least one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1)
and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and the Company has reviewed and considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees on 13 November
2020, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, to oversee specific aspects of the Group’s
affairs. Each of the Board Committees has its own terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code relating to its authority and duties. All
Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, including access to management or professional advice if
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considered necessary. The composition of each of the Committees as at AT -
the date of this report is as follows:
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EENE EREEE FMEES REEZESY
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Heung Che Kan MEE LA - - Chairman
B
Independent non-executive Directors B FEHITES
Mr. Chiu Tai Shing BB RS Member Member Member
Mr. Fung Hoi Fung g RS A Chairman Member
Mr. Wan Wai Wing BETER A Member Chairman Member
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members who are all independent
non-executive Directors and is delegated with the authority from the
Board primarily to oversee the Group’s financial reporting and internal
control systems, and the adequacy of the external and internal audits.
Details of the authority and duties of Audit Committee are set out in the
Audit Committee’s terms of reference which are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Period:

reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group'’s internal
control systems and its accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions;

reviewed the external auditor’s independence;

discussed the scope of 2021 audit with external auditor and
approved the audit fees;

reviewed, with external auditor, the key audit matters as included in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report”;

reviewed the Group’s annual results for the Year;

made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor; and

met with the external auditor, in the absence of the management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, which
comprises three independent non-executive Directors and is delegated
with the authority from the Board to establish, review, and make
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and
practices. Details of the authority and duties of Remuneration Committee
are set out in the Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference which are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 May 2021, no Remuneration
Committee meeting has been held.

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 2)#% R B R 2

EREES

BERZEem=-ENEEN  RERDBBIIE
MITES YREFSERESN  TEREE

55 18 1O B 755 FR R L R RRAE B R - DA RRONER R A
MEZEOEE - BERZBENBIEBEFS
FHIIMBZZESWBERE  RNARFRBE
Kot AZ P e ut AT L& B o

UM REZZEENARRETHTHEHRE

J$EIMW%TﬂﬂF n kB
Mo Wigst EE %ﬁ$ﬁ&@%%#ﬁ

sk .
ge

EHIME BB B

HEINBZBEI S R — T - —FRERREY
HEZBER

EONRZ A E B DI A B AR BAI RS |H
FAstEIZ SR

EHARERNAEENRE

OB EF R ERNEETSIEL R
BR R

WHEIRENESIER T B iz gahgm -

FMEER

TNEEem =B EBEANK  EFBE=EBT

FMITEE  WEESSEEES  ATHE R

ﬁﬁglm%wﬁﬁ&ﬁW&ﬁE$Ahﬁﬁﬁ
FZE e RBEFBERINE

éﬂam%%ﬁa PR B B A8 U B B A2 TR

Huh AT &R o

BETRBAEREZE T —FHAA=1+—0H"
WERITHFHEES S -

//////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////



- \

ML

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1E ¥ & Ak

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, which comprises
one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors
and is delegated with the authority from the Board to formulate and
implement the policy for nominating Board candidates for election by
Shareholders and assess independence of independent non-executive
Directors. Details of the authority and duties of Nomination Committee
are set out in the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference which are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 May 2021, no Nomination Committee
meeting has been held.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited, in respect of its audit and non-audit services for the Year was

REEESE

REZEBEmM=ENEMENX HPBE BT
EENMEBLIFNTES  TESESERR
N RRBESFSREAMBRRERGTRENT
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RAFE  RARBZBEEEEE(FE) G5t

BhEBAAR R ARENET MIFEAREME

as follows: NHENTENBEIT :
HK$'000
FiET
Annual audit services FEENIRE 750
Assurance service in relation to the listing B ETHRERS 965
Non-audit services EBEET RS 50
Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements EEHMBHRRNEE

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and principles and
the disclosure requirements under applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. The Board considers that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future and is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
doubts upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yeung has become the company secretary of the Company since 24
May 2019. Mr. Yeung has confirmed that he has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Year and has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The biography of Mr. Yeung is set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Procedures for Shareholders to convene general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit,
convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board. Such enquiries can be
addressed to the company secretary in writing by post to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Rooms 2901-02, 29/F, Saxon
Tower, 7 Cheung Shun Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon or by email to
info@katyueconstruction.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the AGM.
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Procedures to put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

The Company is not aware of any provision in the Articles or the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands for Shareholders to propose new
resolution at a general meeting. Shareholders who wish to put forward
proposals may request the Company to convene a general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph
headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene general meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At annual general meetings, Directors are available to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

Significant changes in constitutional documents

The Company adopted an amended memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “Constitutional Documents”) on
7 December 2020 which was effective upon Listing. A copy of the
Company’s updated Constitutional Documents is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the Period,
there is no change to the Constitutional Documents of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and level of risk tolerance of the Company, establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board is committed to oversee and review the
design, implementation and monitoring of such risk management and
internal control systems through the Audit Committee on an ongoing
basis so as to safeguard Shareholders’ interest.

The Group established the risk management and internal control systems
with aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and provided reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatements or losses caused by judgment in decision
making process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.
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The Company has engaged an external consultant to establish an internal
audit function during the Year. The external consultant has assisted the
Audit Committee in carrying out an independent review on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, and has reported the status of its review to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis. The Group has formulated an internal audit
charter to define the scope and duties and responsibilities of the internal
audit function and its reporting protocol.

The Group has also conducted an annual risk assessment for the Year
to identify potential strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and
compliance risks of its major business. Each of potential risk was rated at
different level under the consideration of internal and external risk factors.
Respective internal control measures were proposed to mitigate the
consequences of the potential risks to the Group.

Based on the risk assessment results and following a risk based audit
approach, a continuous three-year audit plan was proposed which
prioritised the risks identified into annual audit projects. An annual audit
project was performed by the external consultant according to the audit
plan with a view to assisting the Board and the Audit Committee to
evaluate the effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company has also formulated policies on handling and dissemination
of inside information in accordance with “Guidelines on Disclosure of
Inside Information” under the Securities and Future Commission, which
set out procedures in handling inside information in a secure and proper
manner as well as those aimed to avoid mishandling of inside information
of the Group.

The Board has discussed and reviewed its risk management and internal
control systems with the review covered the effectiveness of material
controls (including strategical, financial, operational and compliance
controls) at entity and operational levels. Based on the result of the
review performed by the Audit Committee and the external consultant,
the Directors considered that the Group has maintained adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the Year.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Yue Kan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) along with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is pleased to present its Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) for the year ended
31 May 2021 (the “Year”), prepared in accordance with Appendix 27,
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

This Report aims to disclose relevant ESG information, including
information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, as well as
environmental and social key performance indicators (“KPIs”), to the
stakeholders of the Group.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in marine construction works, other civil engineering
works and provision of vessel chartering services in Hong Kong. Unless
otherwise stated, the reporting boundary of this Report covers the Group's
operations in Hong Kong and the Company’s office in Hong Kong.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group understands that good ESG governance is the key to the long-
term development of an enterprise. The board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of the Company upholds its primary leading role and
management responsibilities in the ESG aspects, including:

. overseeing the Group’s assessment of relevant environmental and
social impacts;

. understanding the potential impact of ESG issues on the Group's
business model and associated risks;

. aligning with the expectations of investors and the requirements of
regulatory authorizations;

. improving materiality assessment and reporting processes to
ensure that policies are implemented and enforced decisively and
consistently; and

. promoting a top-down culture to ensure that ESG considerations are
integrated into the business decision-making process.

The Group has specifically formed an ESG governance team consisting of

the Directors, company secretary, management and external consultant,

which updates the Board on a regular basis regarding the reporting

progress. The main responsibilities of the team are:

. to formulate the Group's ESG strategy;

. to identify and assess the Group’s ESG related risks to ensure an
effective ESG risk management and internal control system, thereby

enhancing the ESG performance of the Group;

. to review, recognize and report to the Board on the Group’s ESG
framework, standards, prioritization and objectives;

. to supervise and implement the ESG strategies on the Group’s level;

. to monitor, review and evaluate the Group’s ESG performance; and

. to review and advise the Board on the Group's reporting to the
public.

Department heads are responsible for overseeing their respective ESG

risks and objectives, and reporting regular updates to the ESG governance
team and the Board of on relevant progress and challenges encountered.
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SUSTAINABILITY AT YUE KAN

The Group continues to monitor and response to the public’s
expectation of the Group’s sustainable development and disclosure of
ESG information. Stakeholders expect to understand the Group’s ESG
policies and non-financial risks more thoroughly. The Group aims to strike
a balance between optimising business opportunities and mitigating
environmental and social risks.

In this Report, the Group has measured and reported various
environmental and social KPIs. The measurement and reporting of KPIs is
an ongoing and consistent process, allowing for meaningful comparisons
of ESG data in the future.

When preparing and compiling this Report, the Group has reviewed its
existing policies and achieved a better understanding of the values of
ESG reporting. During the reporting process through the approach of
measurement, management and changes, the Group hopes to drive
improvement and innovation while minimizing the Group’s non-financial
risks. The Group understands a better future depends on everyone's
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in environmental and
social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDER &
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Communication is an important aspect of our daily operations.
Stakeholder engagement and communication are crucial in understanding
the expectations and priorities of our stakeholders. The Group values the
opinion of our stakeholders and has thus set up and maintained various
communication channels for different stakeholder groups. Comments and
suggestions are welcomed as they represent an opportunity to improve
the Group and its services.
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Stakeholders
B0E

Key Communication Channels

FREBRRE

Shareholders

Clients

0%
™

Employees

B8

Suppliers and subcontractors

Announcements and circulars
Interim and annual reports
Shareholders’ meetings
Company website

NERBHK
FREIRS RFERE
BEEE
NGIFED

Clients’ meetings

Regular debriefing sessions with site workers to collect clients’ feedback
TEe%

RIS TEABETERG ANETPHRE

Correspondences, suggestion box
Annual performance appraisal
B BRAE
FEIERRFE

Business correspondences
Procurement contracts and letters of undertaking

. Performance appraisals
HEE LD B - BEBEK
RIS K MAHE
RIRAA
Government and regulatory authorities . Compliance inspections

Due submissions

Conferences and seminars

BT R BB R - ARKE
AR
eEEMEE
Community and public . Press releases and news
R RAR . FERKIE

Apart from regular communication channels, the Group has also
conducted an environmental, social and governance survey to collect
opinions from employees, management and external stakeholders, so
that the Group can better assess the materiality of various environmental,
social and governance aspects.
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The implementation of materiality assessment has been divided into three BEHBAENERD B =X EREER :

main phases:

i.  identifying the potential material ESG aspects that may have impacts i. ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁ By E R R AT - BRI
on the Group’s business or stakeholders based on the Group's actual B ASEEBR SN EEEETENER
development and industry characteristics; éﬁESGTyﬁ

ii. inviting internal and external stakeholders to complete ii. HMBEABRIMNFNETKASHS - AT
questionnaires to understand their level of concern for each aspect; R EHEAEOBEEREE AR
and

ii. analysing the results of questionnaires to determine the priority of ii. DMAEMENERAETETERTEL
the potential material aspects. BIRFE ©

The following matrix diagram is prepared by the Group to illustrate the AEEREUTEREHBEERBHFOER
significance of various issues to our stakeholders and business: EBHEEM

Significance to stakeholders
HEFHENER
Mid

Significance to business

HEBHEZM
Low Mid High
1 ey =
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Environment

BRE

10.

11.

Environmental
compliance
RIFER

Vehicle emissions
management

BB E

Vessels emissions
management

MR R R I

Civil construction works
management
TARBETIZER
Marine construction
works management
BERETIREE
Greenhouse gas emission
B SREEHEL

Waste management
BEEYE

Energy consumption
LIRS

Use of water resources

IKEIRIER

Green office
ERNE

Responding to climate
change
FESRIEE L

Labour Practices

BIER

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Employment compliance

RIREM

Employees’ remuneration
and benefits

BB R AEH

Employees’ working
hours and holidays

B E TR BN R

Diversity and equal

opportunities
LTSRS

Occupational health and
safety
BERFEELTE

Training and
development
[l e

Prevention of child labour
and forced labour

BrlEE T RoRHIE5 T
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Operating Practices

EEEA

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Operational compliance  30.

BERH

Management of 31.

environmental risks in the
supply chain
EEHEEAIRRRER

Management of social 32.

risks in the supply chain
EIRHEENT SRR

Procurement practices
HRESR

Quality management
mEEE

Client health and safety
HPEEELZ R
Protection of intellectual
property
IREMBER
Research and
development

fitgE M pA

Information security
hilkaea

Client privacy protection

BERILEBRE
Anti-corruption

R&ES

Community Investment

HERE

Charity work

mETIE

Promotion of community
development

HEFHEER

Poverty alleviation

KREIE



Based on the above materiality assessment, 11 material aspects has been
identified for the Group’s business and stakeholders. The Group has spent
more effort to assess, control, monitor and report the material aspects to

A
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WA

CHERERERE ¢

AR EERENMG - AREBBENEEAE
BEBLFNEMSNEZET - NEBBEAN
2% ERFAREEER - WRERHNE

meet stakeholders’ expectations.

Material Aspects

MEASE -

BEEM

1. Environmental compliance 14.
RIFER

3. Vessels emissions management 16.
B E R

4.  Civil construction works management 17.
TAREBETIZER

5. Marine construction works management 19.
BLRETIRER

12.  Employment compliance 23.

BHAH

Employees’ working hours and holidays

BB TR B RE]

Occupational health and safety

BiRfERERTE

Training and development
R R

Operational compliance
LEAR

Quality management
mEEE

13.  Employees’ remuneration and benefits

B BB e

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group is principally engaged in marine construction works, other civil
engineering works and provision of vessel chartering services in Hong
Kong. We understand that our operations may impact the environment
and different stakeholders expect an environmentally friendly culture in
the corporate landscape. An Environmental Management Plan (the “EMP”)
has been adopted to assess, control and monitor various environmental
nuisances arising from our operations.

During the Year, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste. The relevant laws and regulations include but
not limited to: Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance,
Water Pollution Control Ordinance, Dumping at Sea Ordinance, Waste
Disposal Ordinance and Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance in
Hong Kong.

EMmRE
AEEIENEFENESERETE HsEK
TRERRHMEBEERS - HATHE  HANE
BARFERE  TRBNERRLERENR
RXE - BHRAIREEEAB((REEETE )
AeHE ~ I RERRMNEEELN SRR
B o
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Environmental Management

When acting as main-contractor, sub-contractor or vessel chartering
service provider, the Group is committed to implement and maintain an
environmental management system by following the EMP. Protecting the
environment is the responsibility of every staff in the organization. The
Group is committed to sustainable operation and minimizes any adverse
impact on the environment resulting from our business activities. The

principles of our environmental policy are as follows:

. focus on prevention of pollution, waste minimization and resource
conservation as critical considerations within our core management

processes;

. comply with applicable legal requirements and other requirements
to which the Group subscribes which relate to its environmental

aspects;

. provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation
of environmental nuisance abatement and environmental

management;

. obtain and renew the necessary environmental licenses registrations
and permits and comply with relevant statutory requirements and

licensing standards;

. conduct regular performance reviews to ensure that environmental
objectives and the requirements of interested parties are met;

. prevent pollution within and outside of the site;

. minimise environmental nuisances and generation of construction
and demolition materials in execution of the works;

. provide staff training to all levels of persons involved in the works to
ensure understanding, implementation and development of these

principles throughout our business; and

. make continual improvement.
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Protection of Marine Ecology

During the Year, one of our in progress projects was to deploy a number
of artificial reefs in The Brothers Marine Park to provide artificial habitat
for the purposes of marine and fisheries resources enhancement. The
Group hopes to tender for similar projects in the future to contribute to
the protection of marine ecology. Regarding other marine construction
projects, in order to minimize its impact to the marine ecology, the Group
has adopted marine travel routes and management plan for construction
and associated vessels and marine activities plan. The plans can reduce
disturbance to corals and cetaceans due to vessel movement.

Promoting Environmental Awareness

To promote environmental awareness of our staff, the environmental
policy statement is effectively communicated to our staff and a mandatory
induction training for new workers and sub-contractors are conducted by
the environmental officer/supervisor (the “EO/ES”). Environmental bulletin
boards are available for display of posters, signs and statistics. The EO/ES
also regularly conduct site inspection, communicate with workers and
promote environmental practices.

Apart from the induction training, the workers receive regular training on
environmental nuisance abatement and waste management. The content
of the training include suitable topics relevant to the trade of the workers.
The topics include:

. construction dust, air emission and suppression;

. construction noise and suppression;

. wastewater handling, discharge and treatment facilities;

. waste collection, handling and disposal;

. resources and energy saving;

. site plant and machinery (operation and maintenance);

. maintenance of site access, site boundary and haul roads;

. marine travel route and management;

. loading, unloading and transfer of material; and

. loading and unloading and transfer of heavy or metallic materials.
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Environmental Policies and Control Measures

Policies and control measures with continuous effort are required to
minimize environmental impacts and promote efficient use of resources.
The Group has adopted various policies and measures in the EMP to tackle
different kinds of potential impact to the environment. The policies and
measures are regularly reviewed by the project team/EO/ES to monitor
the effectiveness and efficiency. In case the policies or measures cannot
effectively minimize the nuisance or promote efficient use of resources,
project team/EO/ES shall advise other measures to further control the
impacts. In addition, the Group considers the efficient use of resources on
site or in the office, such as electricity and water, is of equal importance
to emission policies. Efficient use of resources not only can reduce waste
and emissions from the sources, but also reduce operating expenses,
which is mutually beneficial to the Group and the environment. Since the
Group's operation do not include any production of packaged product,
the disclosure for total packaging material used for finished products is
not applicable.

Through the implementation of the policies, measures and monitoring
of their effectiveness, the Group hopes to reduce its carbon footprint by
controlling the amount of emissions, waste produced and resources used.
Various emission reduction and energy efficiency initiatives have been
implemented, which are set out in the EMP, environmental policies and
control measures.

Regarding the Group’s emission reduction targets and energy use
efficiency targets, the Group shall continue to optimize the policies and
measures in order to control or reduce the intensity of emissions, wasted
produced and resources used. The Group shall analyse our emission
and energy use patterns based on a 3-year timeline and consider
implementing more specific targets.
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The highlights of policies and measures are as follows: BER RIERBENT

Aspects Policies and Measures

EH HERR i

Dust, air emissions and greenhouse gas emissions . appropriate screens, enclosures and water spraying

EEIR - EERBEISOR = RESHEN systems are deployed to minimize construction dust;
BETEENRE - INRMBEKRES - ABERDHE
THEE

ultra-low-sulphur diesel are used in all diesel-operated
construction plant on site to minimize emissions;

PfT 78 T 3th 5 i BR B &) 528 55 eR A (50 FR BB M 2 B 50 DARL
DR

engines of construction equipment, private cars and
vessels during idling are switched off to minimize

emissions;
TEEEBEREESRE  AREMMENEBHIA
BRI

regular maintenance are conducted to ensure equipment,
private cars and vessels are operating in good condition
in order to minimize noise and emissions;

ETERMGE  BRRE  LREMMERIEEIN
WA RE RBERY)

only regulated machines with exemption/approval label
under Regulatory Control on Emission from Non-road
Mobile Machinery (NRMMs) shall be adopted for the
projects;

THE RRERBAE BB HRMBEMEEES TR
e, HARBNTEEHES

encourage employees to use their best endeavours to
take public transport during business trips;
SEEEELHEHRFRERFAHE

encourage employees to reduce unnecessary overseas
business trips, thus reducing indirect carbon emissions;
s BIE BRI N BEBINEZE - WER D EERBE
consider energy efficient products when procuring and
replacing equipment, e.g. replacing incandescent lighting
with LED lighting;

BRI R MBS E BAL IR s E M - HILAALEDIREA
BREFE

turn off electrical appliances or switch them to standby
mode when they are not in use, thus reducing the
amount of electricity used;

BB A B Sk T BN B RER AR RS - ¢ iRt AP AR
BEE:

turn off all unnecessary lighting, air conditioning and
electrical appliances before leaving the office;

BRI AERIBARPIAE TL R - SRNERR
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Aspects Policies and Measures
=] BE KB
Noise generated . use quieter plant - Quality Powered Mechanical
EERRE Equipment (QPME);
- (ERREFRE - EERERE
. install silence/noise enclosure/acoustic shed where

practicable;
- EATHBATRESS REE /TREW
. turn off idling plants and equipment;

FAREEMNRE NRE
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Aspects Policies and Measures

=] BE KB

Water consumption and discharge into water . regular inspection and maintenance of water supply
FKE RAKEES outlets are carried out to avoid water dripping;

HKRBETERE R gEAB RRKBER

promote water conservation awareness among workers

through training;

FiREIIRE T AGLRKER

provide sufficient portable toilets on sites and vessels;

FET b AR SR BRI

cover open stockpiles of construction materials or waste

with impervious sheeting during rainstorm in order to

prevent washing away of materials or waste;

ERWEHBATE KON EEERERZEM

BEYD - LABH LER R SR AE

adopt proper control in chemical and chemical waste

storage to prevent spillage;

e Bm M BREEYF R RIVEE B IDE S

prevent barges to be filled to a level which may cause

overflow of materials of pollution of water during loading

and transportation;

D - R AR S NE R BETIETI A B BUKT R

WER AR

clean excess materials on the decks and exposed fittings

of barges before moving the vessels;

BEHEMERNBRFR ERBMINERE LOZHY

o

overflow or lean material overboard (LMOB) systems are

prohibited;

2 b S R EEE 7K (LMOB) 4%

maintain adequate freeboard on barges to reduce the

likelihood of decks being washed by wave action;

R M ERFEERAOTAL - DURD B IRBORRERA A
RIEYATBENE

all vessels shall be sized such that adequate clearance is

maintained between vessels and the seabed at all states

of tide;

IEMENR T RBREMG B RETMERSE

R 2 R+ B S0P

vessel movements shall be kept to a minimum;

AR B RIS ERIERE

prevent works from causing foam, oil, grease, litter or

other objectionable matter to be present in the water

within and adjacent to the works sites;

By Lk TA2 12 T3th A AN B 30 89 /K R EE AR 5ROK ~ R~ O

P~ AR RS ARBNYME
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Aspects Policies and Measures

=] BE KB

Waste generated and disposal of waste . reduction at source, e.g. minimize the generation of
BEEMEENEEMEE construction and demolition materials, use electronic

means to reduce paper usage and use duplex printing;
WIREE FR D - Plan R ER D BREMFRM B B E
& ERABFAAMADRKRER - WEREEITE
encourage employees to recycle equipment such as
computers and communication devices through the
recycling programme of Environmental Protection
Department;

B E B RBRRBOLIWETE - mUER B LNE g
BHEMRS

reuse office stationaries (e.g. envelopes and folders);
BRABRAEXEARGINEHRER

reuse the inert materials produced on construction site;
RSB E LB

recycle paper, aluminium cans and plastic bottles;

EURAR - Rt B

inert waste and non-inert waste must be separated
before disposal;

BRI MIEBIE M ERERLAEDR

encourage workers to use reusable d|shware;

S TAERAERERNEA

provide adequate waste skips and garbage bins with
proper cover;

R R AR IFABMTA Z R BIRAR

employ licensed waste collectors to remove general
refuse from the site to licensed landfill sites or refuse
transfer station;

LEIF M E YW RS — MR ar R A T3 B T R R MR
@ Sty R E UL

separate collection and storage for general refuse,
construction/demolition material and chemical wastes;

and
#E—Mark - B IRBR YRR 2R 5 R U E R
f#F &

dispose waste on a regular basis to minimize odor, pest
and litter impacts.

EHRIEREY) URERDRK - ERMERHOETE -
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Air Emissions RPN
During the Year, the Group’s sources of direct air emissions were RAEE  AEBNEZEERFIRBERBLK
from gaseous fuel consumption from private cars and marine gas oil HREDERERMENMBLERERE - AREX

consumption from vessels. The air emissions of the private cars included BEREMBFZEAALTNO) 8011% « Al
8,011 grams of nitrogen oxides (NO,), 187 grams of sulphur oxides (SO,) (SO,) 18732 S A IR A BRI KL F 5905 ° Mk &) BE
and 590 grams of respiratory suspended particles. The air emissions of the BHMEERAEYNO,) 28,187 F = ALY
vessels included 28,187 kilograms of nitrogen oxides (NO,), 49 kilograms (SO,) 49F 52 R Al R ASBIF KL F593F 52 »

of sulphur oxides (SO,) and 593 kilograms of respiratory suspended

particles.

KPI A1.1: Private cars emissions and respective emissions data

BREEMRERAI  AREFRRAEFREE

Respiratory suspended particles
AN T . >0

Sulphur oxides

wmay | 187

REY 8,011

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000

g
i

Private cars emissions
FLREHER

1 The vehicle emission factors were calculated based on the Hong Kong 1 HIRBEN A SRR A RIS (RS E BN
Environmental Protection Department’s Vehicle Emission Calculation Model. SR ER o

KPI A1.1: Vessels emissions and respective emissions data

BREMIEREA MEFRREEEREE

Respiratory suspended particles
A RASRFH T I 293

Sulphur oxides

maity | 49

Nitrogen oxides
REAL 28,187

Vessels emissions
M EBEMR

0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 30,000
kg
T
1 The vessels emission factors were calculated based on the “Quantification of 1 A E PR Z 2 R 5 Entec UK Limited 2571 HY [ B8
Emissions from Ships Associated with Ship Movements between Ports in The Ml EMEERBNERES O BB EERENOME
European Community” from the European Commission published by Entec B E(L ETE B -
UK Limited.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions BEREHH

The Group’s direct greenhouse gas emissions of the private cars and REBEMARERMEERRAZEREBHREES
vessels included carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide /L HX(CO,) * B 4t (CH,) R AL A (N,0) © LR
(N,0). The carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emission of greenhouse BERMEMNRERE _AIRCO)EEN R
gas from private cars and vessels were 33,784 kilograms and 1,600,925 33,784F 5 }21,600925F 52 - HXr EHEIRER
kilograms respectively. Its major indirect greenhouse gas emission were: BEWA - ENELEN -—SALHX(CO,) 7242F 5
7,242 kilograms of carbon dioxide (CO,) resulted from the generation of BRARBAEREERBTEENERARF - H
electricity, which was used in the office and purchased from CLP Power M ERAEREREHIRRE - REMRAE
Hong Kong Limited. Other minor and indirect greenhouse gas emissions BE4R801 T 52 — A /LHR(CO)EE °

sources were: 801 kilograms of carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emission

resulted from office waste paper.

2

Group was 1,642,753 kilograms and the carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent 1,642,753 F 52 & — & ALHR(CO) B BHE /475
emissions intensity was 4.75 kilogram/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue. 52/ AT -

During the Year, the total carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emission of the RAEAFE  AEB_SIRCO)EELHE A
)

KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total

BAEEMIEEKPIAL.2 . BBEEREHEN

Total

From paper waste

wepEs | 80

From purchased electricity

TEINEE | 7,242

“rine N oo
H >

From private cars

®EFLRE 33,784

SAIRE BHN

Carbon dioxide equivalent emissions

0 300,000 600,000 900,000 1,200,000 1,500,000 1,800,000
kg
T
1 The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from private cars was calculated 1 AREH_ERESHMBERTERBRES
based on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas REAREIREZLRACESREY (BE - F
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional FERARAR) R EREEBERGR O ZENR
Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental HIESETEFHE o
Protection Department and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department.

2 The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from purchased electricity 2 HMNBE AR R EiE SRS EH9C20207]
was calculated based on the emission factor obtained from the “2020 FHEERHRES VESHER RS ER LN -
Sustainability Report” of CLP Group.

3 The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from paper waste was calculated 3 BEAZS(UHRESHHREEERBEREZR

based on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas BEERETRBHMACEBEZEY (B - T
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional S AHAR)RAER B RBRHOZENRE
Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection D ERLE -

Department and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.
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4 The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from vessels was calculated based
on the Emission Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories from the United
States Environmental Protection Agency.

Discharge into Water and Land, and Generation of Hazardous and
non-Hazardous Waste

During the Year, the Group’s major source of discharge into water
was from use of water in the office and on the vessels. The amount of
water consumption and discharge in the office was not available for
collection since water supply and processing of sewage were handled
by the property management company or relevant local government
departments. The total water consumption on the vessels for the Year was
3,503 cubic meters and the intensity was 0.01 cubic meter/thousand Hong
Kong Dollar revenue.

Printer toners were the major sources of hazardous waste in the office,
the total weight of hazardous waste generated was 3.25 kilograms and
the intensity was 0.00001 kilogram/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue.
The hazardous waste in the office was collected and recycled by relevant
service providers.

At the construction sites, the main-contractor was registered with the
Environmental Protection Department as a chemical waste producer and
followed the relevant guidelines. Good quality containers compatible with
the chemical wastes were used and incompatible chemical were stored
separately. Appropriate labels were securely attached on each chemical
waste container indicating the corresponding chemical characteristics
of the chemical waste. Licensed collectors were hired to transport and
dispose the chemical wastes at the approved Chemical Waste Treatment
Centre or other licensed recycling facilities, in accordance with the Waste
Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation.

The major source of non-hazardous waste were construction and
demolition waste from construction sites and solid waste from the office
and vessels. The amount of non-hazardous waste generated was 16,343
kilograms and the intensity was 0.04729 kilogram/thousand Hong Kong
Dollar revenue.

The non-hazardous waste in the office was handled by the property
management company. The construction waste was disposed to public fill
reception facilities and landfills. All vessels were kept free from litter and
general refuse at all times and waste skips and garbage bins with suitable
covers were provided at designated locations. All waste disposal points
were maintained and cleaned regularly.

A
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W

4 MEN_S(REEHFMREBEXIEBEZTRRRE
BRORERBEENHNRBEEFHD -

kR EMBET » REEREZERYHEL

RAREE - ANEE K E B E/KEERIORE 8 PR
ERMERK - AREKFISKEERYEER
AR E AR BT SPRIE - B AEAK
MEEMAIKEEEWNE - REEMERFEKESR
3,50337 5 KRB E 40.015 52K,/ T Tl -

MMANRAREEZEEEMHETERE  BEEREE
MBEE H3.25T 7= NEE A0.00001 57,/ FiE
Tl E c WAENBEEEYHIEBERERERS
W £E K B -
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EEEY S LBFEMMEEEENEER - KXH
L 2EMOREEICERT - RB(EMERE (L2
BEW) (—R) BB - FHREMEA T RN ED
E 22 RE W) BE FE 7P 0 3l HL A 15 72 (O] UK R e 2 9 M1 B
ELB2EY -

EEEEYNEERRAEEMBNEERFR
BEEMUARPHAERMENEREY - EANE
EFEBEYE A163B TR LREE H0.04729T 2,/
TR E ©

MAEMEEERYBYEEERRIEE - @2%
BRI R E B A RHER R MR R - A
M EE AR RDR A SR N — R A TE
BIRH T SEREE TSRS - A
BEEMREHIZITHEELBR -
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Energy Consumption and Intensity

During the Year, the direct energy consumption of the Group included
123,092 kilowatt hours of energy consumption by private cars and
6,272,101 kilowatt hours of energy consumption by vessels. Its indirect
energy consumptions included 19,574 kilowatt hours of energy
consumption from purchased electricity.

The total energy consumption of the Group was 6,414,767 kilowatt hours
and the energy consumption intensity was 18.56 kilowatt hour/thousand
Hong Kong Dollar revenue.

BEREERZE
RAFE  AREENEEZERESBIELRELE
IRFEE123,02 F LB M EfeRFE=6,272,101F

- EERGEREEREIINEE NNERES
19,574 F FLF ©

ﬁEIE’J%ﬁﬁ%EMMEFFHH—?  MEEIRAE
[ R18.56 T FLE T mlias -

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total

B A MERA2.1

CRERESNWRERR REEERER

Total

By purchased electricity
shgEsn | 19974

=
NCE2

N
E

Energy consumption
BLIRFE

By private cars
RS I 123,092

B |
A =

0 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 6,000,000 7,000,000

1 The energy consumption by private cars and vessels was calculated based
on the data obtained from the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the
International Energy Agency.
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Responses to Climate Change

The increase in climate change has led to extreme weather events such
as global warming, rising sea level and drought, which may affect the
Group's operation indirectly.

The Group has identified increasing risk of heat stroke due to extreme
weather and potential technological change in land reclamation work due
to rising sea level as the major risks in relation to climate change, that may
have a significant impact on the Group.

In response to climate change and the above risks to the Group’s
operation, the Group shall continue to control or reduce its impact to
the environment. In addition, the Group has provided relevant training
and anti-heat stress clothing with better breathability, faster sweat
evaporation and better UV protection to site workers. The management
shall continue to research and closely monitor the effect of rising sea level
to land reclamation works.

OUR PEOPLE

The Group believes that employee is the most important component
driving the Group’s success, thus maintaining a good relationship with
employees is of utmost importance. By regular communication through
different channels, the employees are encouraged to express their
opinions on the policies relating to employment and labour practices. With
a view to constructing a work environment that favours collaboration and
cooperation in compliance with relevant laws and regulation, the Group
has placed strong emphasis on providing training and development
opportunities, while maintaining a safe and healthy work environment.

As of 31 May 2021, the total workforce of the Group consisted of 46
employees in Hong Kong. During the Year, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating
to employment that have a significant impact of the Group, including but
not limited to Employment Ordinance and various anti-discrimination
ordinance.

D

HERER

FE¥ R iR
RIREBCMBIEHR2IRE -
EmRREM - AIREEERE

BFLA RS
R S E ) 8

RE B R m KRG ZE IR A KEF
H A ERHEE IR BEERMBE L EERARM
RIREEOHTERR @ FIEHAEBEREAT
é: o

REMREE(CR DRHAREZENRR - A
SESEBEZH RO EHRENTE - 1o
AREEF ST ARMAMSEII M AEEFE
T?F??&BEHEEETW%“HE“* - ERERBET T NE
ESUKFHE LIRS TIRNTE
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AEERRETRESHASEKNREZ A
PRERD - B - BEERFRIFBEKEESR -
BATRRENEHAR ZEEEBREZELNSA
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STARRE DI FOE R 2k ﬂ&/\f’EE’JIf’Eﬁaiﬁ » K
SEEERMFIIEERRE  FNEE—EL
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ETAHARELR
(BAREER - Z-_—FHA=1T—HHIEES)

Composition of the Workforce at a Glance

(This refers to employees of the Group as at 31 May 2021)

By Gender By Employment Type By Age Group
gk ¥l - ba) RERERE S RERARSE D
8
17% 17
37%
17
83% ’
Male Office staff Below age 30
S WMAEET 305RIA T
Female Site worker Age 30 to 50
7 T A 303K E505%
@ Above age 50
505504
Remuneration and Benefit S ENEEE R

The salaries and benefits of the employees are based on prevailing
local market rate and subject to adjustment based on experiences and
qualifications. Staff performance appraisals are conducted annually to
assess staff's performance, which also serves as an official communication
channel with employees. To attract and retain outstanding employees, the
remuneration packages are subject to review annually.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately. During the Year, the total employee benefits
expenses of the Group amounted to HK$982,000.

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 2h1% iR B FR A &)
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Working Hours and Holidays T & R R

Office staff are in general required to work 5.5 days a week from 9:30 a.m. MAZEET —RBEGFHETIESSK B EFNK
to 6:00 p.m., while site works are in general required to work 6 days FETFARIE  MIMTE—MRESEIEX
a week from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Due to operational requirement, BEFNAREETFAKIE -@BREEZR - F
employees may be required to work outside the normal working hours at FIKEBEMBERTEERDEZERITAKNBEM
the discretion of the department manager for the proper performance of BEMREHE RIS TIEREAINTIE -
the assigned duties and that the compensation leave or overtime pay are ERASNEZERFRENGTE - ~XEEEBE
calculated according to the employment contract. The Group encourages BEMEERTIEREEMEIRETE DIk
the management and employees to maintain a work-life balance, avoid VERINI - #RFRIFHRRIXE

unnecessary overtime and maintain a good corporate culture.

The Group provides holidays and leaves for the employees including: REEREESREORABE -
statutory holidays; . AERE:
paid annual leave of not less than 7 days per annum; - BEMRIRNBEHFR

sick leave in accordance with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter -  FFACREIEOID(FBENES7E) 2 BFR
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong); =8

14 weeks of maternity leave, in accordance with the Employment - FECEBERODZ BEFER - H14F
Ordinance;

5 days of paternity leave, in accordance with the Employment - FelERELDDZBFHFERSK &
Ordinance; and

special leaves including 3 days of marriage leave and 1to 3 daysof -  HRIKE @ BIE3KHEBIM Z3RAER -
bereavement leave.
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Recruitment, Dismissal, Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination

In order to standardise recruitment and dismissal procedures and
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the Group
has formulated the Staff Handbook and Human Resources and Payroll
Management Policy and Procedure.

The department requesting recruitment has to fill in a “Staff Requisition
Form” with details of the job description and requirements, which shall
be reviewed and approved by senior management. When recruiting
for a senior management position, the Board’s review and approval are
also required. The major principle of recruitment is the suitability of the
candidates in relation to the positions. Other factors such as required
practical knowledge of the position, the qualifications, attitude, skill,
potential and experience of the candidates are also considered. During
recruitment, the Group encourages to provide equal opportunity to
people with different social statuses, races and genders, with a view to
increasing internal diversity and strengthening competitivity.

Upon the employment of an employee, an employment contract which
is prepared in accordance with the Staff Handbook and relevant local
laws and regulations, shall be signed with the employee including terms
on non-disclosure agreement. Probation period is usually 3 months and
subject to the performance review for extension.

The conditions of terminating employment contract are thoroughly
communicated to the employees through the Staff Handbook and
their employment contracts, and the terms and conditions comply with
relevant local laws and regulations.

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 2)#% R B R 2
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Employee Turnover Rate EBERKLER

From the period of 1 June 2020 to 31 May 2021, there were 27 employees R-ZE-ZEFNA—RAE_ZT-_—FRA=1+—
(26 site workers and 1 office staff) who left the Group, with a total turnover HEIR » REBRKAH27ZEE (26RMBTA
rate of 59%, all of whom were working in Hong Kong. The turnover rate of R1BWAEET)  BIRKER59%  HEIAL
male and female employee were 68% and 13% respectively. The employee REE - BUEMZEEB MK E 5D H68% K%

turnover rate by age group was as follows: 13% ° IRERAREI D MEEMALLENAT -
Below age 30: 0% . 30T 0%
Age 30 to 50: 41% < 30&507% : 41%
Above age 50: 80% . 505 L 80%
The employee turnover rate by geographical region was as follows: R@EREIDHEE AL ENT
Hong Kong: 59% - BE: 59%

KPI B1.2: Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

FRENESEB.2 25 FRAFNRGESINEERKLER
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Health and Safety

The Group is committed to provide employees a safe working
environment to protect them from occupational hazards. A Safety
Management Plan has been adopted to manage, control and coordinate
the works in order to protect the safety and health of our employees.

The Group only allows worker with valid Green Card (Mandatory Basic
Safety Training) holder to work on site. Certificate of Mandatory Basic
Safety Training is valid for three years and workers are required to attend
refresher training by recognized training bodies for renewal of certificate.
The project management ensures only employee holding a valid license or
certificate of competency to be assigned to jobs requiring specific license
or training. In addition, management and supervisor should hold relevant
safety certificates. Our workforce holds a number of marine construction,
civil construction and vessels related certificates, including but not limited
to:

. Certificate in First Aid;

. Certificate of Training for Works Supervisor Safety Training Course;

. Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate;

. Safe Working Cycle Training Certificate;

. Certificate of Training for Assistant Safety Officer Training Course;

. Certificate of Training for Construction Safety Supervisor Course;

. Certificate of Training for Environmental Protection for
Environmental Supervisors;

. Certificate of Training for Hazard Identification Activity;

. Certificate of Training for Accident Investigation;

. Certificate of Training for Risk Assessment & Job Safety Analysis;
. Certificate of Training for Safety Inspection;

. Certificate of Training for Basic Accident Prevention;

. Certificate of Training for Basic Safety Management;

. ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System;

. Skipper Certificate;

74  YueKan Holdings Limited ¥4 235 IRAA R 2
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Certificate of Training for Shipboard Cargo Handling Basic Safety
Training Course;

Pleasure Vessel Operator Certificate of Competency;

Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) Local Certificate of Competency;
Engine Operator Local Certificate of Competency;

Coxswain Local Certificate of Competency;

Certificate of Training for Works Supervisor Safety Training Course
(Marine Construction); and

Certificate of Training for Shipboard Crane Operator Safety Training
Course.

In addition, the Group has certificate databases which monitor the status
of various certificates of our vessels and certificates held by our workforce
to ensure any required re-training or renewal are scheduled accordingly.

The Group or the main contractor ensure that all construction activities
are subject to a formal risk assessment prior to the commencement
of individual operations. Job safety analysis are carried out to identify
critical tasks and potential hazards. After evaluation of the risks, the
corresponding safety precautions can be defined and safe working
procedures shall be developed. Provision of personal protective
equipment should also be addressed in the procedures. The safety officer is
responsible for regular site inspection. In case of emergency or accidents,
the site management should response according to the relevant
emergency procedures in the Safety Management Plan.

The safety officer or supervisor is responsible for conducting pre-task
meeting prior to commencement of each shift work. The pre-task meeting
encourage the supervision staff and workers to communicate on the
following topics:

accident or incident alerts;

change in the work environment or procedures;

concerns over safety, health, environment, hygiene and welfare;
and

other matters as deemed necessary.
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Apart from pre-task meeting, task hazard briefing are also carried out on
a regular basis to ensure workers acknowledge the job instructions, the
approved and safe methods of working, the inherent hazards and how
they should be avoided. The safety officer or supervisor is responsible for
monitoring the safety instructions given during induction and job training
are deliberately followed up to ensure that the instruction remains effective.

To safeguard health of employees during COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has implemented a series of precautionary measures to ensure a hygienic
and safe working environment for our employees to achieve long-term
sustainability of the Group.

During the Year, there were no incidents of workplace injury. During
the past three years, there were no work-related fatality incidents in
the Group. The Group has secured employees’ insurance policies in
accordance with the laws of Hong Kong. The Group is not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to
health and safety that have a significant impact on the Group, including
but not limited to Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and Occupational

Safety and Health Ordinance.

Development and Training

The Group values employees’ development of skills and knowledges, believing
that talent retention can drive innovations and business development. The
Group expects to grow and create values together with its employees.
All new employee on sites must undergo induction training so that they
are able to discharge their duties in a safe manner. The induction training
includes but not limited to:

responsibilities and duties;

safety policy statement and objectives;

project organization - key personnel;

general safety rule and personal protective equipment (PPE);

accident reporting procedure;

emergency procedure — evacuation route and assembly point;

location of facilities (first aid station, drinking machine and etc);

site environment - potential hazard; and

working over/near water.

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 2)#% R B R 2
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Apart from induction training for new workers, on sites tool box BRTHIANABEININ - —REE—IRETH
training are usually conducted once per week to enhance safety and BIAME)  BABRMIANLERERE
environmental awareness of our workers. The training attendance records o BN B RS RT R - LEEEIK
are kept and reviewed to measure the effectiveness and efficiency of AR MERRR o FHIMEEFETER

training. The training material include, but not limited to:

code of practices, guidance notes and guidebooks; - EESPR - fES|ERRIEE
contractual instruction; - AREE:

in-house safety rules; - NEPEZIRE

emergency and evacuation procedure; and . BZRERBEER K

tool box training kit issued by the Hong Kong Construction . DEEEEHT  BELZRERRMSE
Association, Occupational Safety and Health Council, and Airport EREMHITERBEMEN -
Authority.

The Group has been providing high-quality training for employees to meet AEEAEERBEELESINRCEERET K

their development needs, and assisting employees to prepare for various WiBBEB AR ERBEBTEH RN SEE (L
changes brought about by the Group’s active business plans. Employees AT A2 - (WiE B B IS HIEII RSB SIFE
are encouraged to discuss with their supervisor or the human resources HE  BEEEBHEIEIANERDIIN® -

department if they have special training requests or want to pursue EEEBEASIE  MAEZMRIFTBAL - A&
continuing education. On the subject of employees’ career prospects, if EiSZ RN EALAR  EmeERERE R LA
vacancies or new positions are available, the Group shall consider internal E)pANS

promotion or transfer, thus encouraging upward mobility of employees.

In respect of development and training of the Directors and the company HESRATWENBRRIEI - BFLHF®R A

secretary, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” section in AERAME & -
the Annual Report.
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Percentage of Employees Trained and Average Training Hours ZIEER TR ZINNFITREE
Completed

From the period of 1 June 2020 to 31 May 2021, the Group’s percentage R-E-_ZEFNA—RAE_ZT-_—FRA=1+—
of employees trained for male and female employees were 89% and 13% HEE AEEzSUERZUEZIIEEB LS
respectively. 71 £589% 52 13% ©

The percentage of employees trained by employee category was as REBHAESNZIEERTSLDWT :

follows:
Office staff: 35% /N4 = 35%
Site worker: 100% . O MEET A 100%

KPI B3.1: The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category

BRENIEE B3 RUBIRESENEINZIESFT I

Site worker )
_ AR T A 100%
S —
Te oeear I
5% mazAT %

Female

13%
el |
SM

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
Percentage of employees trained

XilllREAS
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The average training hours completed per employee for male and female BEREMRZMEEE W‘f&%ﬂ\ W TFERE D RA

employees were 17.61 hours and 0.25 hours respectively. 17.61/)NKF }20.25/) N8

4” ‘m]u

The average training hours completed per employee by employee EZEEEZDHNEAEE TN TFIIRFE

category was as follows: NN
Office staff: 0.71 hours . MREBET: 0.71/)\EF
Site worker: 22.72 hours . MBI A 22.72/NEs

KPI B3.2: The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category

BRENIEREB3.2  EMFIREEERE D  SEERETHIINFEIRE
Total workforce
zerz T -

Site worker
_ HAR T A 22.72
S =
o IR Office staff
%a}gé WA=8 T I 0.71
(@]
Female
e | 02
ol
i 17.61
3 |§:_ 1 1 1 1 J
0.00 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00
Average training hours SC)mpIeted per employee
B5EBRRE T B
Labour Standards # IR

The Group strictly complies with the policies and guidelines in the IS5 B B A B ST A B R A O &9 1 (R R I 9B
employment laws of Hong Kong, including elimination of child labour, 5l BEMBET - RALEBHIEBTE - I
forced labour and illegal worker. All operating units have to ensure no DRI B RIEEAIRE \é'MEﬁﬁEI R EES
child labour, forced labour or illegal worker is employed. During the YIEELT - RBERANERIIIEEREE
recruitment process, the human resources department requires candidate EREFNEAX  TREEEEREGEER
to provide identification document to check their eligibility to work legally REEEELE -

in Hong Kong.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group continues to monitor closely on its daily operation and
encourages suppliers and contractors to join force in promoting
performance of sustainable development. Suppliers and contractors are
bound by contracts and the laws and regulations of Hong Kong, ensuring
their compliance with laws and regulation relating to environmental
and social policies. For instances, they are forbidden to employ under-
age labour or workers without work visa, and the products supplied must
meet environmental standards.

During procurement for the Group, purchase requisition is initiated
according to the requirement of construction projects or administration
department. The Group has maintained an approved list of suppliers
by evaluating the price, quality, time delivery, industry reputation,
payment terms and etc., to ensure a fair and equal selection. When
performing supplier/contractor background check, the project manager
and administration management are encouraged to evaluate the
environmental and social risks of the supplier and contractors. The
industry reputation of the supplier/contractor includes its environmental
risks (e.g. whether the supplier/contractor was previously fined by the
Environmental Protection Department) and social risks (e.g. whether
there was recent occupational accidents occurred). By operating an
ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System, the Group encourages
supplier and contractors to improve occupational health and safety
requirements, as well as to mitigate their environmental and social risk for
continuing improvement.

The Group also encourage that more environmentally friendly products
or services should be procured when it is feasible, with a view to
minimizing negative impacts to the environment and human health,
and also conserving natural resources. The environmental and social
risks of the supply chain are monitored by the project management and
administration manager. If there are significant changes in environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, they should discuss with other
departments and decide on risk responses.

During the Year, the Group’s number of suppliers engaged by the above
practices by geographical region are as follows:

. Hong Kong: 60
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QUALITY MANAGEMENT

The Group operates a Quality Management System which compiles with
the requirement of 1ISO 9001:2015 for the provision of port works, roads
and drainage, site formation and waterworks. By implementation of
I1SO 9001:2015 - Quality Management Systems, we continues to improve,
monitor and review our services to ensure customer satisfaction. The
Group has formulated a Quality Policy and ensure all staff understood and
implement the policy, which aims to:

exceed the service requirements and expectations of our customers,
to ensure we are their preferred service contractor;

develop a rigorous work attitude, provide quality service and meet
clients’ requirement;

instil in staff the right kind of work attitude and professionalism;

develop procedure and guidelines to regulate the company’s
operational requirement;

encourage and support all types of training, regard employees as
important assets of the company and promote the concept of quality
service and safe work to employees;

encourage supplier and contractors to improve occupational health
and safety requirements;

encourage and require, wherever appropriate, our business partners,
suppliers and vendors to adopt equivalent principles; and

identify the risks and opportunities of the Group, and plan for action
needed to be taken.

Our quality assurance process include but not limited to determining and
reviewing the requirements of services, control of service provision and
nonconforming outputs, as well as monitoring, measurement, analysis
and evaluation of the performance to ensure customer satisfaction.
Internal audit at planned intervals of the quality management system are
carried out by the main contractor or the Group in order to ensure the
system conforms to the requirements and is effectively implemented and
maintained.
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With a view to protecting intellectual property rights, clients’ data and
privacy, Directors and employees must comply with the Group’s Code
of Conduct and relevant sections in the Staff Handbook. Disclosure,
use or sharing of confidential information are strictly prohibited unless
authorized or required by law. Each department of the Group should
ensure security measures are in place to protect the confidential
information, including locking sensitive documents in safe and restricting
access to confidential data in computer systems. In addition, the Group
has formulated a General Computer Controls Policy and Procedure, which
aims to safeguard the information assets of the Group including clients’
data. The scope of this policy includes information technology usage and
safeguard, access right monitoring, system maintenance, protection from
virus and malware, and data protection.

The Group seeks fair and honest competition to gain competitive
advantage through superior performance rather than through unethical
or illegal business practices. It is prohibited to obtain confidential
information, to acquire trade secrets or any other information without
the owner's consent, or to induce any past or existing employee to make
unethical disclosures. Each employee should respect the rights of the
customers, suppliers, competitors and employees for fair trade. Employees
should not gain an unfair advantage over others by manipulating,
concealing, abusing privileged information, distorting the truth, or
any other illegal practices. Employees must not engage in price fixing,
collusion, bid rigging or any other similar illegal anti-competitive activities.
In conducting business, the Group encourages building reputation and
maintaining good relationships business partners but not to gain any
unfair advantage.

To monitor the above practices, employees who observe suspected
activities that are illegal or in violation of the Group’s regulations are
encouraged to report to the Audit Committee by following an Anti-Fraud
and Whistle-Blowing Policy and Procedure. Details may refer to the “Anti-
corruption” section below.

During the Year, the Group'’s percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons was 0% and the number of
products and service related complaints received was 0 (zero).

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance

with relevant laws and regulations relating to product responsibility that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 2)#% R B R 2

ENRENBERE TPNEHLLE  EF
MEERETAKETATARE T FMHER
ﬁﬁﬁ o FROEERBRAME - BRIBRBE LR

CERRDFREBEN - AEE R I ERR
%mHX;zii IERRERTER - BIRHHUR T
REHELRHIHERZRTEZEROFE -
BHN - AEEEHIE —REMEZRRLER -
EEREAEERREEFPENSFERNEE - LK
ROBISBIRE AR AE B LR -« ShEERE
E - RAREE - RS BB YRE L R BIER
& o

AEESKAFRHESTF - BAFEOREM
BB TERICDEINBETRESHFEY -
AEMBEERE  ZILERETER  EERE
WESETRMEMBER - K| EETMBEXRA
BREETTEREE SEEEREEEPF - f#f/E
[ %ﬁ%ﬁ?&@%ﬁ’] R ZHER - BB TE
BBRAL - R EARSEEN  EMFEIE
ﬂﬁ@*ﬂl#&izdi RFERPEFHMATLF
MES - BE T 2HEBMER  RB  FER
BREMEMBLOPEARBEFES - EREFEH
- ANEREE B R B E R R EBB R R
% ETSRSENTATHED -

BERLNE1TA  HEBAEERIEENERSTE
EFEMGEEHNEES BRABRERNGENRE
WBERAMEFRMEZZEE®RE - FBAULHET
X[ RESF]—H -

RAFE  AEEZEEXEEXREMEETE
%7 2 B B B M 2B [ W B 20 L A5 0% Ko B HE
RE fn MR IR EFEE R0(F) -

EAZJS¢F AEES T HABEMHEREBEEKX
TENEERETEENHERERLERNEKR
Té%ﬁlﬁ/ﬁi °

//////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////



ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group considers ethical conduct is of utmost importance in corporate
sustainable development and long-term success. Directors and employees
must comply with the Group’s Code of Conduct and relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, prohibiting individual and commercial bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

An Anti-Fraud and Whistle-Blowing Policy and Procedure has been
adopted in order to prevent, detect and report fraud into a set of format
written requirements. Any fraudulent activities or violation of the Group’s
Code of Conduct shall be reported to the Audit Committee, which
will be fully and promptly investigated by the Audit Committee. The
investigations should be handled confidentially. The identity of whistle-
blower and the suspected cases will not be disclosed. However, if there
is sufficient evidence to suggest that a case of possible criminal offence
or corruption exists, the matter may be reported to the relevant local
authorities.

To help the Directors better perform their governance role, a training
package on business ethics for listed companies published by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption has been provided to the
Directors. The training package features ethical challenges faced by the
company directors and highlights corruption issues, fraud, conflict of
interest, cross-boundary bribery, backdoor listing, insider dealing and etc.
The Group shall strengthen its ethical culture by regular anti-corruption
training or materials to directors and employees.

During the Year, the number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees was 0 (zero) and the
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations relating to anti-corruption that have a significant impact of
the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to create a positive impact on the communities in
which it operates. Employees are encouraged to participate in community
projects and activities.

During the Year, one of our in progress projects was to deploy a number
of artificial reefs in The Brothers Marine Park to provide artificial habitat for
the purposes of marine and fisheries resources enhancement. The Group
hopes to tender for similar projects in the future to contribute to the
protection of marine ecology.

In the coming year, the management shall review policies relating
to community investment and explore the feasibility of increasing
community investment activities.
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group continually improves by managing, monitoring and reporting
its KPIs. The tables below present a quantitative overview of our
performance.

Subject Area A. Environmental
EREWARIR

KPI A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data’

BREMERAL | R EERERFEREE

MEENER
AEEBREER  ERMERLBREMEET
BGE © AT SR BHEMORRIEE BRI -

B E

Unit FY2021
Item ER B —E-BF
Private cars NO, emissions FRRERECYNO)BENE g7 8,011
Private cars SO, emissions FLREGREACH(SO ) HF e g 187
Private cars RSP emissions FLR B BT RN HE AR g5 590
Vessels NO, emissions MERBILTNO)HFHE kgT 5 28,187
Vessels SO, emissions MERALY(SO)HERE kgT 5% 49
Vessels RSP emissions MEBIZEN IR kg7 593
KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BEENEEA.2  BRERBANRERRE
Unit FY2021
Item 1ER B —E-BF
Scope 1 - Direct emissions from sources SE - HEAERBHK
CO, equivalent emissions from private cars FARE —S(LHCO)EEHHC kgT 5 33,784
CO, equivalent emissions from vessels? & —|bHR(CO,) B BHHC kg T3 1,600,925
Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions iE2 - BEERREEREBHR
CO, equivalent emissions from purchased BEEH _AULIRCO)EEHN kgTi 7,242
electricity*
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions EE3 - Hth R R = R HE K
CO, equivalent emissions from paper waste® FEAR — R LHR(CO,) B BHEHC kg7 801
Total CO, equivalent emissions —RbiRCo)EBHImES kgT5e 1,642,753
Revenue Week HK$'000F 7T 345,618
CO, equivalent emissions intensity ZEULHR(CO,)E EBHMEE kg/HK$'000 475
T/ FHET

1 The vehicle emission factors were calculated based on the Hong Kong 1
Environmental Protection Department’s Vehicle Emission Calculation Model.
The vessels emission factors were calculated based on the “Quantification of
Emissions from Ships Associated with Ship Movements between Ports in The
European Community” from the European Commission published by Entec
UK Limited.
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The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from private cars was calculated
based on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental
Protection Department and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from vessels was calculated based
on the Emission Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories from the United
States Environmental Protection Agency.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from purchased electricity
was calculated based on the emission factor obtained from the “2020
Sustainability Report” of CLP Group.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from paper waste was calculated
based on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental

W

RRE_LALEHMEEFRRETEREREER
EERETRERMCEEEZED(BE - £
F AR R EREIR IR RENRE
HEaIDEE -

& —R{LHR(CO,) & B MR EBEXBRIZIRE K
ERREEREBHMAFISEE

BEEHN _ALBEEFRBERTEEEN
0207l A B R ME VPTERH PIN R BEHE -

BR _SLRESHMEETERRREZRE
BRETRZSRMO(EBEEY (BE - EXHX
AHAR) R ERBHRIRBRAREMRE S
SIEHE -

Protection Department and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department.

KPI1 A1.3 & A1.4: Total hazardous and non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

BREVERAMIRAL: FELEERESERNBENREE

Unit FY2021
Item ER B —E--BF
Total hazardous waste produced? FIEAXBERBREY kgF e 3.25
Total non-hazardous waste produced FrEE 4 EREEY) kgT5e 16,343
Revenue e HK$'000F % 7T 345,618
Intensity of hazardous waste produced FFEXBEREENRE kg/HK$'000 0.00001
Fr/FAET
Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced FIEABERENZE kg/HK$'000 0.04729
T,/ FET
KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity
BRENIEEA2 REAEINEER SBEEREEEREE
Unit FY2021
Item EH B —E--BF
Energy consumption by private cars? LR ERERFEE> kWh T E B 123,092
Energy consumption by vessels MERIRES? kWh T EL B 6,272,101
Energy consumption by purchased electricity BEEHERER kWh T EL s 19,574
Total energy consumption EREFE kWhT FL B 6,414,767
Revenue Yegs HK$'000F 7 7T 345,618
Energy consumption intensity EREERE kWh/HK$'000 18.56
TFEEFHET
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KPI A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity

BRENIEEA22 BEKERBE

Unit FY2021
Item 1ER By —E--BF
Water consumption? FEKE? m337 75K 3,503
Revenue e HK$'000F % 7T 345,618
Water consumption intensity FRERE m3/HK$'000 0.01
SR TR

1 The data only accounted for hazardous waste produced in the office.
2 The energy consumption by private cars and vessels was calculated based

on the data obtained from the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the
International Energy Agency.

3 The data only accounted for water consumption on the vessels.

Subject Area B. Social
TEHEBAME

2

BIBEAAPREEENBEEY

RRERMERRESREBEBERE A5
TR T (Energy Statistics Manual) g E -

HBIRE AMENFTKE -

KPI B1.1: Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region

BRENIEREB1 C BMR - BREER - FRANRGESSNESRAH

FY2021
—ED-BF

Number Percentage
Category 5l £ §E] B
Total workforce THES 46 100%
Gender 431
Male S 38 83%
Female Zi 8 17%
Employment Type EEER
Office staff /NS S 17 37%
Site worker AT A 29 63%
Age Group FrE Rl
Below age 30 30BRA T 4 9%
Age 30to 50 302 505% 17 37%
Above age 50 50504 £ 25 54%
Geographical Region &
Hong Kong BB 46 100%
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KPI B1.2: Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

BREXIERBL.2 : 145 - FRARNRBES S NEERKL R

FY2021
—E--BF
Turnover Rate
Category k<Yl MKt =
Total workforce FHES 59%
Gender 4 5
Male el 68%
Female pegis 13%
Age Group FHeE Rl
Below age 30 30BRA T 0%
Age 30 to 50 30E5073% 41%
Above age 50 5085 0A 80%
Geographical Region &
Hong Kong B 59%
KPI B2.1: Number and rate of work-related fatalities
BRENIEER2.  ATEBEMETHABRLEER
FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
—E-NBEF —ECRHEF —EC--MEF
Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage
Category Hhl S §E| Epalse 2E Aot 2R Aot
Work-related fatalities B T{ER{R ML 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
KPI B2.2: Lost days due to work injury
BREENEEB22  BIGEATIHFAR
FY2021
—EBE--MEF
Number
Category Al 2 gE|
Lost days due to work injury ETEEATIEAR 0
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KPI B3.1: The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
BRERIEER3.  EUFIRESENESNZIRET DL
KPI B3.2: The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category

BREMIEREBR3.2 : Z#UFIRESERNE D BRREERAZINFIIEH

FY2021
—E--BF
Average
training hours
completed Percentage
FERZ N
Category Al Y 35 B 24 Aot
Gender 451
Male B 17.61 89%
Female i 0.25 13%
Employee Category EEEH
Office Staff MA=EET 0.71 35%
Site Worker AT A 2272 100%
Total workforce THES 14.59 76%
KPI B5.1: Number of suppliers by geographical region
BEENEERS | B 7 A EREE
FY2021
—E--WF
Number Percentage
Geographical Region HE E2¢E] Bkt
Hong Kong B 60 100%
Total CEAS 60 100%
KPI B6.1: Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
BEENIEEB6  CERCEXERAHPER2ERREEHMARNKNE DL
FY2021
—E- B
Percentage
Category 5l B
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to B &3 BB X E mAAE P AL 2 HiEFEIER
recalls for safety and health reasons IR GolElaned 0%

88  YueKan Holdings Limited ¥4 2112 iR B R 2 T

A



- AN

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 1818 - 2R ERWMRE ¢

KPI B6.2: Number of products and service related complaints received

BRENMIEEB6.2 | BHEMRERKEBENRFEE

FY2021
—E--WF

Number

Category 5l EgE]
Number of products and service related complaints FREANERRRTEOIZEFEE R EH T 0

received

KPI B7.1: Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period

BREXMERB  REEHAHRTAREEERE Y CEENESHARFNHE

FY2021

—E--BF

Number

Category Al £ 4E|
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt R EEHRNEEITASEEEREWE B 0

practices brought against the issuer or its employees WESHFARGHEE
during the reporting period
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INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND EEBRAXHM(ERE HEREARE
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE STOCK Ve L]
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas and Aspects Page
TEHERET B¥

Subject Area A - Environmental

FEHRA -RE

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : B
General Disclosure Information on: 57-67

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RRIRER BRABERIMOBZEREBYN - MKRIHHEES AERESERYNEESH

a) BR: R

b) BETHETAGEATENHBERZLROINER -
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 65
RASEAE RUETRATLT eI SR AR A BE R B -
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions and, where appropriate, intensity. 66
RSB RUIEIRA.2 BERBAENER(WER)FE -
KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 67
BAREIEIRAL3 FEXEEREEYEER(NER)EE -
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 67
RSB UIRIRA14 FRESBREREYEER(ER)EE -
KPIA1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 57-60, 63
BARE IEIRALS PRI LV HENE B IR R R IER|E L B IRFTERE P 5 -
KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description 57-60, 64, 67

of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
RSB UIEIRAL6 MR A ENBEZTEREYN L - R PAEI LR E B R R REDE LB R
PREXH) AP BE ©
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
FTEHERER BH
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[BHEA2 : EREH
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw 57-64
materials.
— MRk ER BRERAER(RIEER - K REARMRE)BIBUR -
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 68
BAR A IEIRA2.1 RENEIDNEER SHEEEREEERTE -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 67
B AE IR IRA2.2 BFEKERTRE -
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 57-64
BAREIEIRA23 PR SRR IR AR B IR AR IE R3S L B IR ERERE 28K ©
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water 60, 63
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
RSB UIRIRA24 HASKEGE R KR AT B EAERE - LRI ARG B E R REIELRE
FTERERE) 2P 8%
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with reference to  Not
per unit produced. applicable to
the Group’s
operation
RSB HEIRA2.5 X MATABEMENAE R (WNER)BEEEUIEE - S EIENS
REBER
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
[BEA3 : BERAARER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural 57-64
resources.
—MRBEER IR BEIT AHRIZE R AR B REK ERTEHNBE
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural 57-64

BB AE IR 1RA3

resources and the actions taken to manage them.

R EERHHRELRAERNERTER D RN EE AT ENTE -
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
TEHRERER BH

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EHEA4 : |IREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have 69
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RBEE BRI REHER R AT HETAEEFENERRKEBEENER

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those 69

which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

FASEAE IR IRAL BRI EHETAELEVENEARKEREE - RELTH -

Subject Area B - Social Employment and Labour Practices

TEHEB -HEREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
FEEB :

General Disclosure Information on: 70-72

a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—MRBEEE B L AR BERE  THERE BRI TERE - 2t RERUAK
HF s L ape

a) BE: K

b) ETFTHHEITABEAZENEBERLBRIINER -
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region. 70
RS AR B TRB1. IR EBERE - FiedER KRB S K IESEE -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 73
RAS AR X E1RB1.2 IR - FiER MR DEEE MK X o

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 2)#% R B R 2
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
TEHRERER BH

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : REEZZE

General Disclosure Information on: 74-76

a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

—fRINEE BRRHZE2THERREIMREREBLBELEEN

a) BE K
b) BFHETAGEATENHEBEIEZLBROINER -

KPI1B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years 76
including the reporting year.

RAS B R E1RB2.1 BE=ZF(BERSFE)EFRITHHABSILE -

KPI1B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 76

BB R IRB2.2 ETEERIIIEES -

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are 74-76
implemented and monitored.

RSB R 1RB2.3 UM PR BB R R B L 2 10 b - DA RGBT REER 0% -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ETEB3 : /R K&IEI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. 76-77
Description of training activities.

—RRIRER BRARITHE B BT LIERE VA R RE AV BUR © HFFNES) -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior 78
management, middle management).

RAS B R E1RB3.1 rUFIREERMN(NEREERE FREEEZ)ESNXIIEER I

KPI1B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category. 78-79

RS AE WIETRB3.2 BRI REEEFIZES - 8RESTHIINNFHRE -
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
FTEHERER B
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETEB4 : & T %8|
General Disclosure Information on: 79

—RIRE

KPI1B4.1

PR AE SN IR1RBA.1

KPI B4.2
FASEAA M IE1RB4.2

Operating Practices

EEE

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRADT IEE TR HI%5 TH)

Ao

a) BE K
b) BFHEBTABEATENEBEELROINER -

\ral

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
labour.

faiins R E DI E i AR B T N g H 85 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

e IR MBI BB RIS U ERE ) 22 5 o

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[ETHBS - HEHERE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B5.1
BB AR AR5 1RBS. T

KPIB5.2

FASAE K IE15B5.2

KPIB5.3

RAS A RIE1RB5.3

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

IR R EIRE Mt SRR ABUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR B SR EREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the

practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

hkﬁ@%%1%ﬁ%@%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@@%%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ~M&ﬁ%@ﬂ%ﬁ

79

79

80

80

80

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply 80

chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

f B RAER MRS EREIRE R GRABRMED - LARBREMITMERITE -
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
TEHRERER BH
KPIB5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and 80

services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

RSB IR RS 4 il ERE R R 2 ARERERLKRENED - UARBEERTRERTTE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EMEB6 : EMET

General Disclosure Information on: 81-82

a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

—RIKE BRMRHEERVRBNRELELZ S  BS  RHEEAABEEARBRITEDN :

a) BE:
b) ESFEE ﬁ/\ﬁéﬁ%%ﬁ'ﬁﬁE@E&&%ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ'\]ﬁﬂ°

KPI1 B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health 82
reasons.

RAG A 513861 PENRDEREMmABPRET T ERERIEAMARKNA DL

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt 82
with.

B B R 1R B6.2 BB Em MR HIRFE B AR EE A -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights. 82

B AE N FE1EB6.3 i ot B4 T I RPN EE MR AR E B o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 81-82

R iR 4EIEIEB6.4 LS S8 TE B2 R EMEIYWIRT -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are implemented 82

and monitored.

FAsAE KR 1RB6.5 WU EEERRERLBBER - ARBERITRERTTE -
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
FTEHERER BH
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on: 83

—RIRE

KPI'B7.1

FASAE SN IR1RBT.1

KPIB7.2

BASAE AIE1RBT.2

KPI B7.3
BB AR E1RB7.3

a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BREAR LR  $1R - BGFROARER

Ao

a) BE K
b) BFHEBTABEATENEBEELROINER -

\ral

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer 83
or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

RREHAHBHITAIEEERLY D EENE)THARMFNEE MFAER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are 83
implemented and monitored.

et By EB 4 b S BRI - A MBI T MBSO ©

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 83

i mES R B TRENRESHE -
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
TEHRERER BH
Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where 83
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

—RRIRER BN RSERBHRBETACEMNCHENTENRREES ZBSEZELEF
WHBUR o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, 83
health, culture, sport).

BB 51588 HIERER(INHE BREE  BIFR - BE - b EgE) -

KPIB8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 83

RA AR 513 BS.2 EEIHRMBAER(NEEALRRE) o
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Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YUE KAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yue Kan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 105 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 May 2021, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 May 2021
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 21132 B IR A &)
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BEEE (5E) SHMEBHMERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

& WIE SRE77R iSEP 09
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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(BEBEFMAE ) BEANEBYEHREER
(IBEBMBHEER DAEEMA TR HE
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8 o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

HEEXER

RERFOFEXHE - BRFBEZFESEMEZ
AHENGAVBRERTREENFE - Rk
EREAVBBRRMMLER B RFRENRSE
B MASREEEEREFERER

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BESHWEER

Refer to Notes 3(a) and 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).

1A 2k B B IRA N i 3(a) R4A RER B a1 BRI it 2(q)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMRERRNAEERRENSR

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of marine
construction works and other civil engineering works, in Hong
Kong totalling HK$327.3 million for the year ended 31 May
2021.

HE_Z_—FHhA=1H EXEEXREERHEREZ
FTREREMIAIRENKE @ SFREEH3273BEE
It o

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time using
the output method, based on direct measurements of the
value of contract work performed, which is mainly reflected by
the progress certificates issued by customers. The customer
will provide final account when the whole project is completed
and may have adjustments on the amount recognised to
date according to the actual surveys of work performed at
completion.

BHRERIAITAOTIRENEREENE - RAR LA
R 2EER  ZEBEXERMETFEENEEERAL -
EEEAB THKE - BPBRMHEERE - BT RIRTKE
HETHENTENERASHEZ B AIMBEANSEEL

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group and therefore there is an inherent risk of
manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue by
management to meet specific targets or expectations.
BIENRRERHR SAREAEE  RERKRE B5
EHBAREMIERZ — MERFREREREISTRE
S TR B R s R RS TR Y B A

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition for
construction contracts included the following:

B ERES RS ERITETOETRFBREA TS
I8

. assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the contract
revenue recognition processes;

- RHAARHBERERIEFMSEIEABEENRT B
7 RABAERL

. inspecting a sample of contracts with customers, to
identify key terms and conditions, and to assess the
Group's revenue recognition criteria with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

- HBREEEPIIVNER - AHEREZHRRRE
- W2ERTEALANRTETE EXENKE
PR ZE

. comparing the contract revenue recognised for
construction projects during the year, on a sample basis,
with progress certificates issued by customers;

- BESFAREEEEBRIANSHREREFLEEDN
HE T

. conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to observe
the progress of individual projects and discussing with
project managers or site personnel about the physical
status of the respective project with reference to the
agreed timetable and the Group'’s accounting records;

- HERETEHRE  UBERERNEBEAEE 2R
MERRERE BEEMGEHETRE LESmE

ABFwiIAREE MEIER
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BESHWEER

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

Refer to Notes 3(a) and 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).

B 2 IR B TS R a7 3(a) R4 RBER E TR M7 2(q) »

The Key Audit Matter
HRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARELRNUEERRETER

comparing the certified amounts in the final accounts,
for contracts completed during the year, with the
contract revenue recognised to date, to assess whether
adjustments in the final accounts, if any, have been
reflected in the Group’s accounting records; and
HFRAETZKELD  $EREBEPHRESHREERS
BRATPTHER A QW RETLY - UFIRASKKRE SR
AR (B RERRE BEEEMEtRHET K

obtaining confirmations, on a sample basis, from major
customers of the Group to confirm amounts certified
for selected construction projects during the year and,
for unreturned confirmations, performing alternative
procedures by comparing details with contracts, and
other underlying project related documentation.

mm BESREFZEEPERERE  UERFHE
TEREBEENERSHE  YHRTHRENTEME
Fr BREELWEFBERSO LA B IEE 18R
A
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

e MGRERR KBRS EHR
FrEEYE

EFEAHHMERERT - HESERHER
FHROMAER  BREUBEHRE LB FIHEE
BDERESN o

BEFAMBHRREHNERYERELME
£ MEFATeHEMERERTAT A NZE

E=A
i o

ARMBEZEEMBEREMS  RANEERH
HEEMEFR - EMEEEMENEE BERA M
BRIBMEBFZBRETETNERFEEAT
F - AT FEERERRAL

HHEMERDETHOTERREMEMLIREXR
HEREUL - RPIEBMERREE - Blut - RAL
BIREEIR -

EERGSMERRARENRE

EXARERBEBSMASEMNTEME
BERRRBFEARGIZEERE  REEE
MAFRRIEDNERMBHRE - RESETE
HRREAM B RRBLUENEREABEE - X
FBREFRAMBRR T EFHEHNREFEERM
BHNEAFHRRAL -

EREEaMBEHRERE  EFARENMERE
FEKEMEE N YHBEESELLERHNER
(ER) - RIFEZHH BEKEBERIJUFLE
B R 2N EEMERAIITRIOE - DR
ARANFRERE RERNERDE -

ENZBEHHEFRITRSEE
& RENRE -

BEREmH
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

102  Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 232 iR PR 2 7]

I

4 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & Y & H B3R &

BB #E i S MR RARRD
RiE

BB ERAEEELFHRAMBRRBEM
ETEFAERRNMFFRERMEMMENFERR
at - WHERLHBRMELOZHERE - ARE
£ MTEREREMEL BRI ZIMIEEM
R - LA ERAREN AT AR EMEIR
FEMEMALTEES -

REBEBREANZE  EREEEETER
ETHEZTETERBEAREREEMFENERX
BRARER - SARRPRAL A AARF SR R MAEL - fiw
EREREAERABER T AL EERAERE
RAMBHRREHNOEERER  ARKES/EKR
#H AR PR

ERBEFBEEAETEZRRET - RAE
RERAE - REFFRIEREE - TP

a8 Bl B w4 R O BRRE Sl dE AR 1 8 BUeR & B %5
BREEERERBAOER « R RAT
B AREZEFRE R - A RERGEEM
Lam%ﬁum ERHEPERMER - B

BRI R ER B BERER &
&@Liﬁmmﬁﬁ%m%ﬁ'ﬂﬂiﬁﬁ
HAMRGF G EA SRR AR =R
REE I F AR T B B B AR R BRI A0 =

B o
TR EEZAR A EREE FHEER
ERRF A EY a%@lﬁ*ﬁ%%ﬁ
MAMMERRER -

AHEEFRMRMAETBERNGE
FHERTAAER B A IR E -

HERELE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B #Z EiET & <

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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4 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & Y & H B3R &

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 9 August 2021

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number: P04911
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZE B R HMt2HKER <

For the year ended 31 May 2021
BE-Z-_—FHA=+—BIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS"))

(LGETT (BT ))ZT)
2021 2020
—E-F —E-TE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FaE FHET FAET
Revenue &= 4(a) 345,618 313,650
Direct costs HEERA (289,606) (262,616)
Gross profit EF 56,012 51,034
Other income HalugA 5 2,679 323
General and administrative expenses —MRITBAX (9,689) (8,948)
Listing expenses WX (3,358) (7,210)
Profit from operations EERF 45,644 35,199
Finance costs BT RR ZR 6(a) (209) (329)
Profit before taxation BRFLATRR 45,435 34,870
Income tax FTiS 7 (7,800) (6,757)
Profit and total comprehensive FRERR
income for the year THEWN=EEE 37,635 28,113
Earnings per share (HK cents) BREFGEN)
Basic and diluted AEXREE 11 1.94 1.69

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable

to the profit for the year are set out in Note 10.

HBENFEXNZEYBEREN—HD - FREF
JEMER N AR B EHEE B AR B Z B SR
5F10 °
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As at 31 May 2021
RZZE-_—FRA=1+—H
(Expressed in HKS)

4 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %4 B AR R T

(LETTST)
2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bi5E FERT FH&TT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BENREE 12 56,825 49,051
Current assets REEE
Contract costs BRI 14 = 1,706
Contract assets BHEE 15 37,469 37,558
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b WA 16 46,657 33,013
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 17 124,517 31,013
208,643 103,290
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFUR 18 48,252 33,941
Bank loan RITEN 19 - 6,732
Lease liabilities HEBaE 20 614 531
Current taxation BIHARS 18 21(a) 8,218 5,940
57,084 47,144
Net current assets RBEEFE 151,559 56,146
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 208,384 105,197
Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Lease liabilities HEBE 20 1,009 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 21(b) 5,582 5,047
6,591 5,047
NET ASSETS EEFE 201,793 100,150
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 22
Share capital % 22,240 —*
Reserves (=] 179,553 100,150
TOTAL EQUITY FEREEE 201,793 100,150

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 9 August

2021.

Heung Che Kan
A& E
Director

EFE

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY i8R S TR o

For the year ended 31 May 2021
BE_Z-_—FHA=+—BILFE

(Expressed in HKS)

(KETIIT)
Merger
Share Share reserve Retained Total
capital premium (Note 22(c)) profits equity
AOtRE
B ROEE  (HEE22()) REEF BRAE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TET FAL FET FAT FAT
Balance at 1 June 2019 RZB-hAEXA—H
hese - - - 82,037 82,037
Changes in equity for 2019/20: “E-h/ZBEEH
EE28:
Profit and total comprehensive FRENREERREE
income for the year - - - 28,113 28,113
Dividends declared in respect REFNFEEREE
of the current year 10 - - - (10,000) (10,000)
Balance at 31 May 2020 and R-ZE-BFRA=1+-H
1June 2020 R=E-BEXA-H -* - -* 100,150 100,150
Changes in equity for 2020/21: —E-E/C-EER
EE2s:
Profit and total comprehensive FRENREERGESE
income for the year - - - 37,635 37,635
Capitalisation issue BEXMLET 22(b)i) 16,680 (16,680) - - -
Issuance of shares under the Initial & X AFIRR ([ ERAMH
Public Offering (“IPO") BR )BT 22(b)ii) 5,560 98,448 - - 104,008
Dividends declared in respect REHNFEERRE
of the current year 10 = - - (40,000) (40,000)
Balance at 31 May 2021 R-ZE--FRA=+-H
iES 3 22,240 81,768 -* 97,785 201,793

* The amount represents an amount less than HK$1,000.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

* ZEFAEN,000 BITH S EE o
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For the year ended 31 May 2021
HE_T-_—FRA=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in HKS)

4 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 248 EhER

(K Ero)T)
2021 2020
—E-F —E-TE
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
B3 FER FATT
Operating activities RETEE
Cash generated from operations EIEFTSMIR S 17(b) 39,263 41,121
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEXREBFER (4,987) (10,877)
Net cash generated from operating activities ReT@HRSReFR 0 34276 30,244
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of property, INEEME  BER
plant and equipment FEER (14,111) (13,692)
Advances to a director M—BEFBHR (10,000) (8,600)
Interest received EHFIE 5 104 55
Net cash used in investing activities RETHHARSFR 000 (24,007)  (22,237)
Financing activities R EE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENAERSERES 17(c) (464) (689)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEERSH S 17(c) (45) 32
Repayment of bank loan EBRITER 17(c) (6,732) (1,018)
Bank loan interest paid ERITERF S 17(c) (164) (297)
Proceeds from issuance of shares by the IPO, BXAFABRAEITRG
net of share issuance expenses FriS5RIE - HBRARD 1T
s 22(b)(ii) 104,008 -
Payment of listing expenses X EmRX (3,259) -
Dividends paid to then equity shareholders of BENARRARER
the Company RS 10 (10,109) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BEEEESE(FA)W
activities REeFsE 83235 (2,036)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERESEEMHN
FRE N 93,504 5,971
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June RANA—BAHNRER
WEEEY 31,013 25,042
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 May REA=+—BHMEBEELR
REEEY 17(a) 124,517 31,013

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yue Kan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 24 May 2018 with limited liability under the
Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 December 2020. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in marine construction works, other civil engineering works
and vessel chartering services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these financial statements.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
May 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, Interest

Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of Material
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current period
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note
2(g)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note
2(g)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives. The principal annual rates used for the depreciation
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Vessels 10%

- Site equipment 20%-33.33%

- Furniture and fixture  25%

- Computer equipment 25%

- Motor vehicles 25%

- Leasehold 33.33%
improvements

- Right-of-use assets
(Note 2(f))

Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and the leased assets’
estimated useful lives.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(f)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component
for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated
with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

2. EXERBR(E)
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(f)

Leased assets (Cont’'d)
As a lessee (Cont’d)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 2(e) and 2(g)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions
are any rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16, Leases. In such cases,
the Group took advantage of the practical expedient set out
in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. EXERBR(E)
(9 FEBEREERE
() ZBTRAREHNEEZEERRE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and contract

assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see Note 2(i)).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont‘d)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont’d)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and contract

assets (Cont‘d)

Significant increases in credit risk (Cont’d)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2(q)
(iii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss

allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Cont’d)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or contract
asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased.

- Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets; and

- Investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Cont’d)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favorable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(h) Contract costs

Contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment (see Note 2(e)) or intangible assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental costs of
obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs
of obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance resources that
will be used to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials, allocations
of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and
other costs that are incurred only because the Group entered
into the contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or intangible assets,
are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the
contract cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any
costs that relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised.
The accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out in Note
2(q).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i)

()

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see Note 2(q)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(g)
(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see Note 2(j)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see Note 2(q)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see Note

2(j)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see Note 2(q)(iii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
assets (see Note 2(i)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (Note 2(g)(i)).
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed
for expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(g)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group'’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see Note 2(s)).

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(o)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the reporting period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous reporting
periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(o)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(o) Income tax (Cont‘d)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2. EXERE(E)
(q) WEREAMYA

(q) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is transferred
to the customer, at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
the value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS
15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.

128  Yue Kan Holdings Limited ¥4 232 IR G PR 1 7]

I

RAKENBERGBET  REe#
RIEEMA S EASE D IR -

2RISR HI IR AN R B TR A R
MAEREBEHER(TRERRE=ZTW
BMeB)EBERPR &g T

R Wam T BEEEERKIEMBE
B WAL RE SRR -

HEXATEE /T FIREEE12(EA M
BEARENGOBERSD - BIKREIZE
WeBNRENE  ITEARTPNHE
BRERX ST REMRER KRR - A
BWARERMNELEETE - HE L
PEERAEERMHEANRE MaH R
BBy AIRBZANERNBARRE
REBRNFEAENENREMELED
MEFX - AEBEERBEEYHREE
AIEISRFSRNERERE L - B/
BHIRANEASATE - BT afE
RBEBOOERAZERERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(q) Revenue and other income (Cont‘d)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Service contracts for marine construction works and
other civil engineering works

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work
on assets under the control of the customer and therefore
the Group’s activities create or enhance an asset under the
customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the output
method based on direct measurements of the value of
contract work performed.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses
for early completion or suffering contractual penalties for
late completion are taken into account in making these
estimates, such that revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy set out in Note
2(p)(ii).
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(q) Revenue and other income (Cont‘d)
(ii) Vessel chartering services

The Group provides vessel chartering services in Hong
Kong, including the hiring of vessels and crews for a
specific period of time. The Group recognises the fee
received or receivable as its revenue over time in the
period in which the customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as services are performed by the Group.

(iii) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
Note 2(g)(i)).

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

The Company has its functional currency in Hong Kong dollar
("HKS"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
HKS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies (Cont’d)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(t) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(u) Segment reporting

3.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM") for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and

other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The significant accounting
policies are set forth in Note 2. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant judgements

and estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.

(a)

Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy Note 2(q)(i), revenue from construction
contracts are recognised over time. Revenue on uncompleted
projects is dependent on estimating the outcome of the
contract. The Group recognises revenue based on direct
measurements of the value of contract work performed,
which is mainly reflected by the progress certificates issued by
customers. The customers will provide final account when the
whole project is completed and may have adjustments on the
amount recognised to date according to the actual surveys of
work performed at completion. Subject to the adjustments in
final accounts, actual outcomes in terms of total revenue may
be higher or lower at the end of the reporting period, which
would affect the revenue in future periods as an adjustment to
the amounts recorded to date.
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

3.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(o)

The management determines the impairment loss if
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an item of
property, plant and equipment may not be recoverable. The
carrying amounts of these assets are reviewed periodically in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of estimated revenue and operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of revenue and
costs.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of these assets as well as other quantitative
and qualitative information and calculated the lifetime ECLs
based on credit loss experience, and on management's
judgement and assessment of the forward-looking information.
Significant judgement and estimates is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these assets, based on the current
creditworthiness, the past collection history and subsequent
settlements of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional impairment may
be required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. PR K7EBERE
(a) Revenue (a) W&
The principal activities of the Group are the provision of marine AEBRNTEEGARBEEAEET
construction works, other civil engineering works and vessel B HEARTEEAMERERS -5
chartering services. Further details regarding the Group’s MR EE ZEBHE — PRIEHRER
principal activities are disclosed in Note 4(b). B 5E4(b) °
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) Wm7HE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major service lines is as follows:

EPAHNBRREEZREER DA
e

2021 2020
—BC--F —TCTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHTT
Revenue from contracts with customers ~ E&E B IEREXEDFE15 5%
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HERNEFSHWES
Disaggregated by major service lines R ERGE S
- Revenue from marine construction works — 3K /8 F L TI2AURES 166,912 186,327
- Revenue from other civil engineering —REEME RTINS
works 160,371 123,726
— Revenue from vessel chartering services ~ — 3R M ERE RS 18,335 3,597
345,618 313,650

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
information is disclosed in Notes 4(b)(i) and 4(b)(iii),
respectively.

iR R R A M R S B R R Y
F & #%ss o B pe M R 4b) () K
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)
(@) Revenue (Cont'd)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising

from contracts with customers in existence at the
reporting date

The following table includes the aggregated amounts
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s existing
construction contracts. The transaction price does not
include any estimated amounts of variable consideration,
unless at the reporting date it is highly probable that the
Group will satisfy the conditions of variable consideration.
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future

4.

Wi B 53 BB 4R 5 (4R)
(a) Wk (&)
(i) FERIGRARKEZ RIS ARIE

FHEHEFEXITELZRA

TREERBEAEEREELEAY
PREHRTBHET 2R HERE
o RS INEIETM A S YE
RIEET SRR - RIEERER - &%
EiR A 0 58 2 Al EE BRI -
B AEBBNE TRR TR

RIEEAEE - T TIRTE B R 2k
NREUFEA(ZZ-FF : kK12

when or as the work is completed, which is expected to Z248A)NET -
occur over the next 12 to 24 months (2020: next 12 to 24
months).
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Remaining performance obligations TEEEEMNR TRATE
expected to be satisfied 14,228 142,811

Except for the aforesaid contracts, the Group has applied
the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to
its other contracts such that the above information does
not include information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts that has an original
expected duration of one year or less.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group's
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

Marine construction works: this segment involve reclamation
works, submarine pipeline works, sediment treatment works
as well as regulation and deposition of sand blanket works as a
subcontractor to the Group’s customers. Currently the Group’s
activities in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

Other civil engineering works: this segment include foundation
works, site formation works and roads and drainage works.
Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in
Hong Kong.

Vessel chartering services: this segment provides vessel
chartering services in Hong Kong, including hiring of vessels
and crews for a specific period of time.

(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. The measure used for
reporting segment profit is gross profit. No inter-segment
sales have occurred during the reporting periods. The
Group’s other income and expense items, such as general
and administrative expenses, and assets and liabilities are
not measured under individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment assets and liabilities
nor information concerning capital expenditure, interest
income and interest expenses is presented.

4.

Wi B 3 BB R (4R)

(b)

2R E
AREBZEBREEABO D MEER
%o REEE 2 T =E/2HD
# HEID A ERAKEZ &HITH
EEABRBEREHAMEERD B KR
R Z A8 - LEEGHEED
FRAMERK T HIR] 250 & ©

WERETRE : ADXSRIEAD R
MASEMNEFIEHEGTIR KT
EIR - IRBYEREIRUARYENS
BROTETIRE - R - NEBEEHHE
HRENIRNE BT ©

Hft AT : ASBOBHETIE -
A TR TR AR BB R TR o
B - REEAE L RE N EDIRE R
77

MERERS  ADARBBREEME
HERS  BEREEREAERMRSE
K8 -

(i) 7TEBEAE
MG D BRIV MR DA E D B E
RME @ AEBRSTREEAR
WAT S EEERE A 2/ BE
(GEOES

W kX 12 ZEZEDRREL
MR MR E D BT E AR X
IBARZEDMELENEENE
MELMEMEXMOEEA 2K
DEE > AREE D BEEME T A2
EN o e HAR I M 3 A 53 FR I 85
& ARBEMEMKARFXIA
B (flm—RERITBAXAREE
KB &)W IFZERI D #ETE -
b WEEIDHEERABNE
F MEZIBEREAFRX - ME
WA KM EF X ER
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) Segment reporting (Cont’d)
(i) Segment results (Cont’d)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as
information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 May 2021 and 2020 is set out below:

Year ended 31 May 2021

4. WRF5EBEE ()

(b)

DEmE(E)

(i) DEBFEEE)
ERANEFRAEZEFEHOWESTE
AR B R e e fH s 2 SR I[ M
AAEEREITHRERABRHERN
BHE—_Z2-—FK-_FT-"FTFAHA
—+—BHUIFEE@EAEET 2R
DEPRERIETIT ¢

BE-—ZE-—-FHRA=+—HLHE

E
Marine Other civil Vessel
construction  engineering chartering
works works services Total
BERE Hfts £ K mERSE
IR I% R st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TERT TET
Disaggregated by timing of IRFERNF R R KH
revenue recognition and IBEFRESE
revenue from external
customers
Over time PR AR 166,912 160,371 18,335 345,618
Reportable segment gross A 23R 2 ZBHEF
profit 39,612 12,996 3,404 56,012
Depreciation for the year FRITE 3,985 - 2,958 6,943
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) Segment reporting (Cont’d)
(i) Segment results (Cont’d)
Year ended 31 May 2020

4. WRRkSEEEGR)
(b) 5B ()
() 5 EBEA ()
BE-T-PFRAST-ALA

i3
Marine Other civil Vessel
construction  engineering chartering
works works services Total
BEEE HAth + 7K WERE
IR Iig 7% FCH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TETT TET TET TET

Disaggregated by timing of ZHERKFFERIKE
revenue recognition and IMBEFRESE

revenue from external

customers
Over time B b P R R 186,327 123,726 3,597 313,650
Reportable segment gross ~ A] 2R 2 EF]

profit 39,548 10,642 844 51,034
Depreciation for the year FRITE 5,367 . 418 5,785

(ii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss

(i) HE2H7 B8 LR

Year ended 31 May
BEZLA=t—-HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET

Profit R
Total reportable segment gross profit Al 2H/D EHREF 56,012 51,034
Other income EHaUgA 2,679 323
General and administrative expenses —MRITBAX (9,689) (8,948)
Listing expenses FHHX (3,358) (7.210)
Finance costs IR IDIN (209) (329)
Consolidated profit before taxation RABRBIRT S T 45,435 34,870

(iiij) Geographical information

(iii) HEEH

All of the Group's activities are carried out in Hong Kong REBRBEBIRNEBET
and all of the Group’s assets and liabilities are located MAEEMNEEERBEIR
in Hong Kong. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical B o Fitt - WEZIRiE SIS

basis is presented.

BT ©
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)

4. WRF5EBEE ()

(b) Segment reporting (Cont’d) (b) DB E (&)
(iv) Information about major customers (iv) ZEEFHEFX
Revenue from customers during the year contributing FAMASEER T BE10%H F
individually over 10% of the Group’s total revenue is as PRgENT
follows:
Year ended 31 May
BZRA=1t—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer A! ZEA 42,939 102,368
Customer B! =B 114,176 49,617
Customer C2 BEC N/AT 38 > 42,626
Customer D? EPD? 60,014 N/ANE R *
Customer E3 =FE 44,598 N/AAN 3 F*
Notes: ffsE -
1. Revenue from marine construction works and other civil 1. BEZETRERHEHMEIARTRERK
engineering works. o
2. Revenue from marine construction works and vessel 2. BEEETERMEBRERBUK
chartering services. o
3. Revenue from marine construction works. 3. REBFREIREMMKE -
* Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% of the * REFHBERFPRE IR AE
Group's total revenue for the respective year. B B U z5H10% ©
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these 5}5 = Ei%@ﬁ MiERERBRFE
customers are set out in Note 23(a). A EE23(a) ©
5. OTHERINCOME 5. HftilgA

Year ended 31 May

BZRA=1T—HILEE

2021 2020

—E-—F ZETHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FH&TT

Bank interest income IRITFBUA 104 55
Compensation received [t iy - 119
Government subsidies (See Note below) BT EEL (R XXBIRE) 2,575 99
Sundry income E A A - 50
2,679 323

Note:

Government subsidies represent subsidies granted by the

Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under
the Anti-Epidemic Fund.
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6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs

6.

FRIRATR T
PRBLATE FI TDAE TR A TR TR -

(a) MAFERA

Year ended 31 May
BEEA=+—HLFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FH&TT

Interest on bank loan (see Note 17(c)) IRITEZRFE (RWE17(0) 164 297
Interest on lease liabilities (see Note 17(c)) FAE & E&F 2 (R E17(c) 45 32
209 329

(b) Staff costs

(b) EIREAE

Year ended 31 May
BETA=T-HLHFE

2021 2020
—E--F —E-TEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FHTT

Contributions to defined contribution )7 FE R FORIRAT SIVE D AU 5K
retirement plan 982 952
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMET 30,183 27,032
31,165 27,984

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income in accordance
with the employment contracts. Contributions to the plan vest

immediately.

REBRBERBR LA ST EH]
BREBEBREBGIIRT ADERRZER
EERHERBIEAES ([ BEEFT
)  BEESHE S —HHABIUTTEA
BN ERHEFRABAETE - RIFBE
BertE BEXLEREAREERA
%% B 1R BRI AR 5% BIFH
WK - MEFEELNEFRARSEEREE
B o
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont'd)
(c) Otheritems

6.

FRIRATEFI($8)
() HER

Year ended 31 May
BELA=t—-HLHFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHTT
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - B RERENITE
equipment (excluding amounts included in  (TEHEAHXAFEE
contract costs) HE5E)
- owned property, plant and equipment —BEYHE  BELEHR 7,331 6,241
- right-of-use assets —EREEE 592 723
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment  HEBE K& EHEE 15 -
Auditors’ remuneration %AD&
- audit services — AR 750 1,300
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. FERERERMZEKRERPHFR

OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income represents:

"M

@) FABR@FEMEERERPHMSH

15 -

Year ended 31 May
BERA=1t—RHILEE

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIERBiTE — BB REH
Provision for the year FEE 7,114 6,161
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior B FEEETE,
years (FRRERE) 151 (20)
Deferred tax BT IE 7,265 6,141
Origination and reversal of temporary BSR4 ]
differences 535 616
7,800 6,757

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

142  YueKan Holdings Limited ¥4 2132 IR G BR 2 F)

I

RIEFSHE MNEERZEBED KX
B ARERHSHERABRLES
BAMBEAIFAFH o



7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. FERRREMZEKERDPMHR

OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE "R(m)

INCOME (Cont'd)

(@ (Contd) @ (&)
For the years ended 31 May 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong HE-_Z-_—FRK=-FT=_ZFHA
Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in —t+—HIFE  x& @Aﬁﬁﬁﬁf
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under BBFE L THIRIEF ST 4R 5

the two-tiered profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of a qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
other group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the

flat rate of 16.5%.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting (b)

profit at applicable tax rates:

BIERRFIFSHESE - 5B l
BN E28 B8 7m F/1%8.25% M) Fi &
B MBE2aEBamf—=EN
THE16.5%:TE

e R A% BB R NS
FISRMT -

B

Year ended 31 May
BELA=t—-HLFE

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
Profit before taxation B AT A 45,435 34,870
Notional tax on profit before taxation, PRAE AT A B &R TR
calculated at the rates applicable to the (B R AR R FIR
profits in the jurisdictions concerned BAMETE) 7,332 5,589
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEETA BT & (491) (€)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S 2 Biig o2 802 1,191
Tax effect of temporary differences not RTUBROEREER 2
recognised g 6 6
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAEFERETR(BREEE) 151 (20)
Actual tax expense EERIAM 7,800 6,757
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 8. EEl:
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIFEEE R REDZE383(1) & LA K2 A RIAR B
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies FoM(BEREFNTZER) BEROESEHES I
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are i
as follows:

For the year ended 31 May 2021
BE-B--FRA=t-HLEFE

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances  contribution
Directors’  and benefits retirement
fee in kind plans Total
B EE AR
4.1 RIS
EZMe - REVEN  FUHHHR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTER TER TER
Executive directors HITES
HEUNG Che Kan Gt - 1,440 - 1,440
HEUNG Yue Wing (Note (ii)) ¥k (B Gi)) - 552 28 580
LEE Ming Chu Jade (Note (jii)) R (FIeEGin) - 615 31 646
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
CHIU Tai Shing (Note (i) BBARRK (P EE()) 66 - - 66
WAN Wai Wing (Note (i) RETE (PTEEG)) 66 - - 66
FUNG Hoi Fung (Note (7)) BERL(TEEG) 66 - - 66
Total st 198 2,607 59 2,864
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 8. EEM&(R)
For the year ended 31 May 2020
BE_Z_ZFAA=-T-ALLFE
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement
fee in kind plans Total
A FE BN
e EH RIRFTE
E=Me  REDERN  EHHER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Executive directors HITES
HEUNG Che Kan EIF - 1,440 48 1,488
HEUNG Yue Wing 87K - 552 28 580
LEE Ming Chu Jade FHAL - 600 30 630
Total Bat - 2,592 106 2,698
During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable by the RAFE - REBWEX NN ENTESD

Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals set out
in Note 9 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. Except for disclosed in Note
(ii) and (iii) below, there was no other arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

During the years ended 31 May 2021 and 2020, the directors’
emoluments of the Company were borne by a subsidiary of the
Company.

The Company did not have any share option scheme for the
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the year.

Notes:

(i) Chiu Tai Shing, Wan Wai Wing and Fung Hoi Fung were appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company on 13 November
2020.

(ii)  During the year ended 31 May 2021, Heung Yue Wing agreed to waive
the emoluments of HK$28,000 as the capacity of an executive director
of the Company.

(iii)  During the year ended 31 May 2021, Lee Ming Chu Jade agreed to

waive the emoluments of HK$20,000 as the capacity of an executive

director of the Company.

TR E A & = F A T 5IE - LATE
BRSIEE Mk N EAEREE 2 EE k1
BBERR A o BR T SCO () M Giii) T EE A
RAFE @ SIETAEMTHEESE TR
N K [R BN AR B -

BEZ_ T TFAA=1+—H
HFE - AR 7§$%MEE$ & —
JB R RIFALE o

EAYNCIE AR 23 VAR R Gl S NNCIR= 31
HRE A RT &) -

GEX
() BAK REERBSAR-T-TE+—
A+ =AEEEAARVBILIENTES -

(i) BE-_Z-—FRA=+—HULEFE @&
WKREMRBERAARRITESTIHH
28,0008 L HT B ©

(i) HE-_FE-_—FRA=F+—HILFE =&

AURRAEREEABARRIRITEESH
20,0008 7T E B ©
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

9.

10

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one is a director
for the year ended 31 May 2021 (2020: one), whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the remaining highest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

9.

EEHMAL
BEZ_-FRAA=T-HULFE" ﬂi%
RERFALTFERARER( T _TF:
#) BEZHHRBERHES - Ef&= 5
ALz ZElRERm T

Year ended 31 May
BELA=t—HLHFE

2021 2020

:g: - qi — 7 —= $

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries and other emoluments e R E A B 3,797 3,826
Retirement scheme contributions RRET 2R 168 168
3,965 3,994

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

AER=HFH A THF A TEEA -

Year ended 31 May
BELA=t—-HLFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

BEEH S =di]

ATEHE AT EE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =8I 1,000,00078 7T 3 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1

DIVIDENDS 10. &2

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Company’s resolution BERERARARME-—RER-_Z—LF

in writing of the sole shareholder held on 22 November 2019, an
interim dividend of HK$5,000,000 per share based on 2 ordinary
shares totally HK$10,000,000 in respect of the year ended 31 May
2020 was declared. The dividend was settled through offsetting
amount due from a director during the year ended 31 May 2020.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Company’s resolution
in writing of the sole shareholder held on 19 October 2020, an
interim dividend of HK$20,000,000 per share based on 2 ordinary
shares totally HK$40,000,000 in respect of the year ended 31 May
2021 was declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

10. DIVIDENDS (Cont'd)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 9 August
2021, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 May 2021 of
1.124 HK cents per ordinary share totaling HK$25,000,000 (2020: Nil),
was proposed for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 May 2021 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$37,635,000 and
the weighted average of 1,936,099,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year, comprising:

(i) 2 ordinary shares in issue at 1 June 2020;

(i) 1,667,999,998 ordinary shares issued pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue (as defined in Note 22(b)(ii)) on the
completion of the IPO of the Company, as if these ordinary
shares were outstanding throughout the year ended 31
May 2021; and

(iii) 556,000,000 ordinary shares issued on 7 December 2020
by the IPO.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 May
2020 was calculated based on the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$28,113,000 and
the weighted average of 1,668,000,000 ordinary shares,
comprising 2 ordinary shares in issue at 1 June 2019 and the
related 1,667,999,998 ordinary shares issued pursuant to
the Capitalisation Issue on the completion of the IPO of the
Company, as if the above total of 1,668,000,000 ordinary shares
were outstanding throughout the year ended 31 May 2020.

10. BB (48)

BER-_Z-_—F\ALANESEE L
BRRZR - ERRAEZE f*fﬁﬁﬂ
=T RIEFESREBR.124800,2 RE
B 54 $£25,000,0008 0 ( —E T4 « ££)
WHEGFRREREREBEFAZ &%
EE - EREEZRENRARESLE
RBEREREEE -

11. SEREF]

(a) BREAREF
HE-_Z-_—FHA=Z+—BILFEE
BREABFNTEDERFALAR
A B = R JE 15 & F1) 37,635,000
BB EITE BB MEFHEH
1,936,099,000% * B¥E

(i) RZZE-ZFA—HBEZETH2
REEAR

(iy MAREEHEXAFEBRTEKEEE
&b E 1T (8 & BB 5 22(b)i))
2 E1TH1,667,999,998 A% & @ AL -
MNZELEBRRNEE_S —_—F
AA=Z+—HIEFEEEHMEE
BITIESN R

(i) BBBXAHBEBRR-_ZE_ZF
+ = A A B %1749556,000,000/%

EImAL -

 E—E-_EFRAA=+—HILFESES
RERBFWOFTEDIERRR A #EE
% B 7 1 325 1) 28,113,000 7T K2 & 8 A%
hNHE S 5 881,668,000,0000% © BIEN =
T-NFANA—HERREBTEBR
M ARRE R ARBRTKREREE
AL 31T B B 1THI1,667,999,998 i X 3@
A% - a0+ 3tt1,668,000,000 0% 38 A% 7
HE-_Z-_ZTFRA=1+—HIFEXE
{E AR 2 FR BTSN ©
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont'd) 1. BEREF(HE)
(a) Basic earnings per share (Cont’d) (a) BRERER(F)
The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary BE_T-—FREK=FT_FFHHA
shares for the years ended 31 May 2021 and 2020 is as follows: =+ —BIEFEEBRMNETHENE
EUNNE
2021 2020
:g:— qi — 7 —= $
No. of shares No. of shares
RBEE IR E B
‘000 ‘000
T T
Shares in issue at 1 June RANA—BEZETHRMN —* —*
Effect of Capitalisation Issue on the BRLBITE K
completion of the IPO BRARABRRE 1,668,000 1,668,000
Effect of shares issued by the IPO on —E-—5+=AtH
7 December 2021 BXAABREEITRONZE 268,099 -
Weighted average number of RAEA=+—HEBERD
ordinary shares at 31 May INAEF 98 1,936,099 1,668,000
* The balance represents an amount less than 1,000 shares. *  EEERTE D P1,0008% ©
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREBERR
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding during the BHE_Z-_—FE=_FT_ZF A A
years ended 31 May 2021 and 2020. Hence, the diluted earnings =T RALFETWESBETESE NN
per share is the same as basic earnings per share. fefn o FHilt - GREERFEGRER
ZBAHER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. % - BB R R
Reconciliation of carrying amount (@) FREEMNHIER
Properties
|eased for
Site Furniture Computer Motor Leasehold own use
Vessels equipment andfixture  equipment vehicles  improvements  carried at cost Total
BREE
HER WERAA
h& IR Be%E B HEEH HEXB il &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Thr T Fin Tin Thn Thr T T
Cost: HA:
At 1 June 2019 RZE-NE
~A-A 41,367 7574 21 175 1547 9 1,260 52,036
Additions hE 12380 1312 - - - - - 13692
At31 May 2020 e —:d
TA=t-H 53,747 8,386 21 175 1547 2 1,260 65728
Additions e 13920 - - - - 191 1824 15935
Disposals e - - - - - 92) (1,260) (1352)
At31 May 2021 RZF-£
BA=1-A 67,667 8,386 21 175 1547 191 1824 80311
Accumulated depreciation:  ZREHTE :
At1 June 2019 RZE-NE
~A-H 6,000 3033 19 74 561 2% - 9713
Charge for the year ERRY 4395 139 2 38 385 3 m 6,964
At31 May 2020 R-E_ZF
RA=1+-A 1039 443 2 m %6 57 m 16677
Charge for the year EMREY 5776 1,167 - 2 310 49 592 793
Written backon disposals ~ HE&(E - - - - - (77) (1,037) (1,114)
At31 May 2021 \ZE--F
BA=t-H 16171 5590 21 141 1,25 2 78 23,486
Net book value: BEFE
At31 May 2020 RZF-FE
BA=1-H 435 4463 - 63 601 3% 537 49051
At31May 2021 R-E--%F
A=t-H 51,49 3,29 - 34 91 162 1,546 56,825

Certain vessels with carrying amount of approximately
HK$13,696,000 were pledged to secure the Group’s banking

facilities (Note 19) as at 31 May 2020.

A—E-TFERA=1+—08  oiEHE

e BB TR (T 3E10) 1 IR «
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 12. ¥  BERRH(E)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FRHEEE

The Group has obtained the right to use the properties as
Group's offices through tenancy agreement during the year.
The lease runs for an initial period of 36 months and it did not
include variable lease payments.

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class
of underlying asset is as follows:

AEBEEFANEBEOZHENEAS
B AENYEERE - B Z 6
RA36fEA - NEERIZEENNK -

RRAEERR SN NERREERE
FEDITATE

As at 31 May

REA=+—H
2021 2020
—s=-—F ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Properties leased for own use, carried at B AR EMERITERAR

depreciated cost FI8R 1,546 537

The analysis of expenses items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

REFTFHEREHEABNTHER S
MranT

Year ended 31 May
BELA=t—HLFE

2021 2020
—EC-—F —ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets XA & ELERIDLER

by class of underlying asset: TREEENEER

Properties leased for own use BRHEEME 592 723
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) HEBENE(MizTe6) 45 32

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 17(d) and 20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise state.

13. RMBATZRE

UTREEBENBARNSE - BaHE

RSN -

Proportion of ownership interest

PR D 2851 A B o

FrEgREL
Place and
date of Group's
incorporation/ Particulars of issued effective Held by the Held by a
Company name establishment and paid-up capital interests Company subsidiary  Principal activities
iR BETR TEEH —ENEAT
NEER REH BRRARE ERER  ADAMEE fisE EEEE
Yue Wang Investment Limited The British Us$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
("Yue Wang") Virgin Islands
28 May 2018
Yue Wang Investment Limited RERAHEE B3 REER
(I'Yue Wang ) —2-N\E
RAZTNH
Kat Yue Construction Engineering ~ Hong Kong HK$5,800,000 100% - 100%  Marine construction works,
Limited ("Kat Yue") 7 January 2005 other civil engineering
works and vessel
chartering services
EHRBETRERAA(EH]) A 5,800,000 BERETR  EfptA
e S IRRMERERY
—RtH
14. CONTRACT COSTS 14. EHIRFE

As at 31 May 2021, the Group did not have any capitalised contract
costs.

As at 31 May 2020, contract costs capitalised were related to the
costs incurred in fulfilling service contracts with customers. Contract
costs are recognised as part of “direct costs” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
the period in which revenue from the related sales or services is
recognised. The amounts of capitalised cost as at 31 May 2020
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 May 2021 were
approximately HK$1,706,000. There was no impairment in relation to
the costs capitalised as at 31 May 2020.

All contract costs are expected to be recovered within one year.

RZZE-_—FRA=+—H AEEBET

MEREA KA -

R-Z-_ZTFRA=+—08  EXHEY
AR BLE A B R S M BR TS A 4 FTEE E A AR
B - AR RN E KRS
RN E B B2 EmRERTERA
[EBEAAIN—BS HBE—FT-—FHA
=+ HILFE  REZFEIR-Z-F
FHA=+—AMNERMEK AL A1,706,000
Br RN ZE-_TFRA=+—H ' EXt

PRI SR ©

TEEFTE A KA R —FALE -
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

15. CONTRACT ASSETS 15. SR E
As at 31 May
REA=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHTT
Contract assets BREE
Arising from performance under marine HEITEERETIRmMES
construction works 26,153 27,847
Arising from performance under other civil FEE7TEM AR TI2MEL
engineering works 11,316 9,711
37,469 37,558

The Group’s service contracts for marine construction works and
other civil engineering works normally include payment terms which
require stage payments over the service period once the progress
certificates were issued by customers. These payment terms prevent
the build-up of significant contract assets. The Group also typically
agrees to a retention period of three months to one year for a
maximum limit of 2.5% to 5% of the contract value. This amount is
included in contract assets until the end of the retention period as
the Group's entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the
Group's work satisfactorily passing inspection.

At 31 May 2021, the amounts of contract assets that are expected
to be recovered after more than one year are approximately
HK$4,402,000 (2020: HK$2,336,000), all of which relates to retentions.
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AEBMEBERETIERHEMEARTIZRE
BR-—REENRER  —BEXPRELEE
HE - MAERBBASAIEERNR - %%
MRIEFAIHEERERGNEE - AKHE
BESHE=MFAZ—FOHRBHR &=
[REAREKEE25%E5% - ARAEEL
TRABREYERTFHER  AKETA
BR&ENT - Bzt AGNEER
EREHRE

RZZE-_—FHA=1+—08 BHER—F%
W EIH) & 4 & FEE £ R84 54,402,000 0 (=
T4 1 2,336,000/5T) © HAATEFIES
REBEH -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16. B 5 R HEMEIRIEA

As at 31 May

RER=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FETT
Trade receivables E 5 EWGRIAE 25,169 10,377
Advance to subcontractors EEEal=EAEN - 871
Amount due from a director (see Note 25(b)) FEU — % & %718 (7 5525(b) - 19,877
Other receivables H b Uk IR 50 50
25,219 31,175
Deposits and prepayments & RIBERRIE 21,438 1,838
46,657 33,013

At 31 May 2021 and 2020, all of the trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

receivables, based on the date of progress certificate or the date of
billing, is as follows:

R-B-_—Fk-_ZT-_TFRA=1+—8"

PB B 5 MEAM IR TERI AT R —F R

Ol s R AR ©

AR 2 AT

RBEHRR - RIBEEESAHREERH

1EHH B 5 UG IR R R

T

As at 31 May

REA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—-F kS 53
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Within 1 month 1EAR 14,946 9,807
1 to 2 months 122 @A 9,844 570
2to 3 months 2E31A 379 -
25,169 10,377

Trade receivables are generally due within 60 days from the date
of progress certificate or the date of billing. Further details on the
Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in Note 23(a).

BHRWFIE-—RNEZEEARNEER
HiEFt60 A AEIH - BRAASEMERRE
RELBESRIGKENERERRNE—F

FHBENTEE23@)
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH

FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of

(b)

17. %%&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&&;ﬂ!ﬁﬁﬁi

(@) HZEMBRARMRSRERTHRS

financial position and cash flows comprise: RASEBYMEIE
As at 31 May
REAR=+—H
2021 2020
=F=—F —ToTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Deposit with a bank RITIER 80,080 4,100
Cash at bank RITIHE 44,437 26,913
124,517 31,013

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

operations:

(b) BRIAVGFIEE LTSRS HEER

Year ended 31 May
BELA=+t—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Profit before taxation FrE A& A 45,435 34,870
Adjustments for: BATEIEEH AL
Depreciation e 7,923 6,964
Finance costs B 5 R AN 209 329
Bank interest income SRITHR BN (104) (55)
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment  H&EE L& EHNEIE 15 -
Gain on termination of lease LIRSz WS (45) -
Listing expenses WAL 3,358 -
Changes in working capital: EEESED
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets, BHEE  BZREAMEY
trade and other receivables and FIBLA K& KIS
contract costs (&), w (32,316) 483
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 KEAM
other payables FERTRRIEIG AN, CR A 14,788 (1,470)
Cash generated from operations REMERE 39,263 41,121

Note:

(i) Major non-cash items

() FERIFRGHERB

During the year ended 31 May 2021, an interim dividend of
HK$40,000,000 was declared by the Company to its then equity
shareholder in October 2020 and approximately of HK$29,891,000
was set off against “Amount due from a director”, which was
included in trade and other receivables on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, an interim dividend of
HK$10,000,000 was declared by the Company to its then equity
shareholder in November 2019 and was set off against “Amount
due from a director”, which was included in trade and other
receivables on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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REBE-Z-_—FRA=-+—AItF
o ARRER-ZE-EF+ATIKT
EAf% £.40,000,0007%8 7T T H 2 FF IR H
#929,891,000/8 L B & @K [ B UL —
BEEFBIEE  HBAGRETE
AR R AE 5) I E A FELUGRIE o

REE-_ZT-_TFRA=1+—HILHF
EARFRER=-ZE—NE+—AS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (Cont’'d)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

17. A& RBESFERMRAMR KT E
BH(®)

() MEZFBFELRBNYIR

TERHFMAEEREEHAELNAR
23 BRRGNIERSEY - AL
BEAMBERREREARKES
MERAEBGEERERERTNER
RMEEDELENRERE -

Bankloan  Lease liabilities Total
RITEXR HESE okl
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT THERT
(Note 19) (Note 20)
(BiEE19) (Bif=E20)
At 1 June 2020 N-EBE-FEA—H 6,732 531 7,263
Changes from financing cash flows MERLTEH
Repayment of bank loan BERITEN (6,732) - (6,732)
Bank loan interest paid BERRITERFE (164) - (164)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEHSHER S - (464) (464)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B FAEMRSHFEE S - (45) (45)
Total changes from financing cash flows Fi &I 2 8B 58 (6,896) (509) (7,405)
Other changes Hibgqt
Interest expenses (see Note 6(a)) F B (R FIFE6(a)) 164 45 209
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FRz]HAEHNHE
new lease during the year BEEM = 1,824 1,824
Termination of lease RIFHE - (268) (268)
164 1,601 1,765
At 31 May 2021 R-B-—EHEA=1-A - 1,623 1,623
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (Cont’'d)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Cont’d)

4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

17. A& RBESFERMRAMR KT E

BH(®R)

() MEFBFELRBNYHRGE

Bank loan Lease liabilities Total
RITEN HERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET
(Note 19) (Note 20)
(FfiEE19) (P¥7F20)
At 31 May 2019 RZE-NFRA=1+—H 7,750 - 7,750
Impact on initial application of BN E BB B4R
HKFRS 16 16T E - 1,220 1,220
AtTlune209 R=FAFAA-H 7750 12200 8970
Changes from financing cash flows BERLREH
Repayment of bank loan BEBITER (1,018) - (1,018)
Bank loan interest paid ERRITERFE (297) - (297)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHAERSNERTS - (689) (689)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BN ER S OFE 5 - 32) (32)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERERZS@E ass) e (2036)
Other changes Hitr 21k
Interest expenses (seeNote6@) __ MIBXH(AME6Q) 27 2 329
At 31 May 2020 R-ZE-EFHA=1+—H 6,732 531 7,263
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH 17. ARG &SEEVREAMALRE

FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd) BH(#\)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HEHABRER
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows FFAGREReRERCHESERENU
for leases comprise the following: &I

Year ended 31 May
HELA=T-HLEFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Within financing cash flows MERSRTEAN 509 721
These amounts related to the following: HESRBENLTRIBEERM :

Year ended 31 May
HELA=T-HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FiEIT
Lease rentals paid BENHEERS 509 721
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. WH K R FEF RIA
As at 31 May
REA=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FTT
Trade payables E S TR 33,768 20,870
Retention payables ERRE S 11,309 8,242
Accrued charges and other payables FEET B A R B fth R RRIE 3,175 4,829
48,252 33,941
At 31 May 2021 and 2020, the amount of retention payables RZEZ—FRZZT_FFHA=+—A80"
expected to be settled after more than one year was approximately TEHERN —FAEEENENREB SR
HK$2,794,000 and HK$1,290,000 respectively. All of the other trade 752,794,00075 7T 1 1,290,000/ 7T © FTA H A
and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as B9 REAMEAFIBERBR —FANEE IER
income within one year or are repayable on demand. RWATREIREREE -
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’'d)

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade
payables, based on invoice date, is as follows:

18. 5 B H M FE ok IA (8)

BERSHR  EXNZEERHNEZEMNE
AR

As at 31 May
REBA=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F e
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET T
Within 1 month 1ME AR 25,989 16,688
1 to 2 months 12218 A 7,779 4,182
33,768 20,870

19. BANKLOAN
At 31 May 2021 and 2020, the bank loan was secured and repayable

19. SRITER
ﬁ/\_ig:—fﬁﬁ 7_7ﬁ5£ﬂ + El ’

as follows: RITERNERRETEEBRIRET
As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FETT
Within 1 year or on demand 1F N IREKER - 6,732

At 31 May 2020, the bank loan of the Group was secured by
mortgage over certain of the Group’s vessels with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$13,696,000 (see Note 12
(a)) and personal guarantee provided by Mr. Heung Che Kan, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the Company
(the “Controlling Shareholder”). The banking facilities amounted
to HK$9,000,000. The facilities were utilised to the extent of
approximately HK$6,732,000 as at 31 May 2020.

The bank loan was fully repaid during the year ended 31 May 2021.
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ERHETASERREEX13,696,0005
TR EE12() A EIRIB R AR R TE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

19. BANKLOAN (Cont'd)

Notwithstanding the specified repayment schedule provided by the
bank (“specific repayment term”) which allow the loan to be repaid
over a period of more than one year, the banking facilities granted
to the Group include a clause that gives the bank the unconditional
rights to call the bank loan at any time (“repayment on demand
clause”). At 31 May 2020, bank loan of approximately HK$6,732,000
was subject to the repayment on demand clause, of which
approximately HK$5,669,000 was repayable after one year based on
the specific repayment term and was classified as current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

However, the directors of the Company expected that the bank loan
was to be repaid as follows based on the specific repayment term:

19. BITER ()

BRERTIRENETEZRFEXR((EBEER
R D AFEZNBB—FHORRERES
ERTFAEEMNRITRERTE —BIER - B
FIRTTRE R B IR T B SR A AR R R R ([ 4R
EREBRKER]) R TFRA=+—
B $R1TE R 496,732,00058 T /B 8 PR Bk
BZ gk - E495,669,000/8 TTE N —F1%&
RIEIEE B R EE - WRRATEHKR
RADEBREARE -

A > ARREFBEHRITERERIEETE
BRHBRIRATHAEE -

As at 31 May
REB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Bank loan due for repayment within —FRIEBNRTER
oneyear:
Bank loan due for repayment within —FRIEEENRITER
oneyear = 1,063
Bank loan due for repayment after —FHIPEENRTER
one year (see note below): (BT Hisr) -
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 F2ER2FR - 1,106
After 2 years but within 5 years 2 F1RERS TN - 3,595
After 5 years 5 F1& - 968
- 5,669
- 6,732

Note: The presentation of amounts due for repayment are based on the
specific repayment term and the effect of any repayment on demand
clause is ignored.

All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants which are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the
drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 23(b). None of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities
had been breached.

BeE - BIHEERENZIIAEEERRRAE
- B ANIE S AR B SRE R R

=472
& o

AEENMMERTRERGE ARMBHE
fEELR PR REEENRR - TAFE - {4
AEEERE  AEEROBESRER
Xt AEBEEMERHEBTHZERENE
ne BREAKERBESCRRERNE—F
BB EE23(0) - BIEEC IR E RS
MZHEER -
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

20. LEASE LIABILITIES

20. HE AR

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of

the Group’s lease liabilities:

TREFIAEENEERERSREOTHA

31 May 2021 31 May 2020
—E--FfRA=+—RB —TE-TFRA=+—H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHEE BEHEE HEHEE HIEHEE
NRBRE INE¥ -2 RERE (ECEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FTHET T8 T8
Within 1 year 1R 614 677 531 539
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 &E2FR 645 677 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years 2R (B A 364 368 - -
1,009 1,045 - -
1,623 1,722 531 539
Less: total future interest expenses  Ji& © AR 2RF BAE ST H (99) (8)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBENRE 1,623 531
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 21. MBI ARMRER
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #HEMEARREROENABIEE !

financial position represents:

As at 31 May
RAEB=+—H
2021 2020
—E--F —E-TE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FiEIT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for FRNEBNSHEE
the year 7,114 6,161
Provisional Profits Tax paid BRI E AR S = (221)
7,114 5,940
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to 381 & [ F| 5 B 4564
prior years 1,104 -
Tax payable JERITRIE 8,218 5,940
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (b) REFDELEHREERE
Movement of deferred tax liabilities BEHELEZE
The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in G MBI R P EROIEETIES
the consolidated statement of financial position and the B E D RFA -
movements during the year are as follows:
As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBRT FiET
Deferred tax arising from depreciation BEAETENTEREESE
allowances in excess of the related HEERIE
depreciation:
At the beginning of the year REA] 5,047 4,431
Charged to profit or loss i Engil]oS 535 616
At the end of the year RER 5,582 5,047
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () KREWAELEHBEEE
At 31 May 2021 and 2020, the Group has no material RZE-_—FR-ZZ_TFRA=+—
unrecognised deferred tax assets. H:W ES£BEUTESEAKRECHERELTH
BEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 & 3§

T



4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 22. SEREE

(@) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details

(a) HEDARIDSBE
REBEE

Rz & AR BB D B HA ) K
ENE AL B SN G Sy

mEFK

A e E"E%ﬂ&iﬂi ZAYNEE: 5 Rl

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of ES D R ENE TN T ¢
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
R RPEE REER @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(iEs THET FET TEx THET
Balance at 1 June 2019 R-E-NEXA-A
4eR
Changes in equity for 2019/20: —E-NF/ZEFEN
BEEEE = - - =
Loss and total comprehensive expenses 2= 518 2 % [ B 3¢ 4058
for the year - - ) )
Balance at 31 May 2020 R-E-EFERA=1+—-H
ik -* - 9) 9)
Balance at 1 June 2020 R-BE-Z&EXA-H
fiseh = = 9) 9
Changes in equity for 2020/21: —E-E/-EEN
e :
Profit and total comprehensive income AU I 2 EIN 2%
for the year - - 40,072 40,072
Capitalisation issue BB 22(b)ii) 16,680 (16,680) - -
Issuance of shares under the IPO BRAFHRRE RN 22(b)Gii) 5,560 98,448 - 104,008
Dividend declared BRRE 10 - - (40,000) (40,000)
Balance at 31 May 2021 R-B--5£RA=1+-8
iz 22,240 81,768 63 104,071

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Cont'd) 22, BXRGEE ()
(b) Share capital (b) B
2021 2020
—B--F ZE%H
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
RBEE kx| RingE i
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BitzE TR THET
Authorised ordinary shares BRAEBOIETHETE
of HK$0.01 each BBk
At the beginning of the year §1 38,000,000 380 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital ETE AN () 2,962,000,000 29,620 - -
Atthe end of the year R 3,000,000,000 30,000 38,000,000 380
Issued and fully paid ordinary SREBOIETNERT
shares of HK$0.01 each RBREBER
At the beginning of the year 2] 2 ¥ 2 —#
Capitalisation Issue (as defined in BRMET(EERTX
note (ii) below) Mk (i) (i) 1667,999,998 16,680 - -
Issuance of shares under the IPO BRLHBRRETRR (i) 556,000,000 5,560 - -
At 31 May 2021 RZE-_—FRA=1+—H 2,224,000,000 22,240 2 —*

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000.

* EERRIEDIM,000/8 TTHY S EE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 3k 163

T



4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b) Shar

e capital (Cont'd)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of
the Company passed on 13 November 2020, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
to HK$30,000,000 by the creation of 2,962,000,000 additional
ordinary shares, each ranking pari passu with the Company’s
ordinary shares then in issue in all respects.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company passed on 13 November 2020, a total of 1,667,999,998
shares were allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, to
Yue Hang Investment Limited by way of capitalisation of a sum
of HK$16,680,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”) on the date
of the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

On 7 December 2020, 556,000,000 ordinary shares were issued
at a price of HK$0.225 each upon the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of HK$5,560,000,
representing the par value, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of approximately HK$98,448,000,
net of the share issuance expenses of HK$21,092,000, directly
attributable to the issuance of shares, were credited to the share
premium account.
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22. BXRGEE(HE)
(b) H’:MS(%E)

(i)

(iii)

BIEANRME—RER T -_TF+—
B+=ZRBBEMAHE - HEREIMNE
7%2,962,000,000 % 3B - A FIE)E
7E % 7 4 380,000 7T 42 11 2 30,000,000
B SRBRGEME A EEANRE
BT EBREEREMA -

BERARE—RREN - =Z ¢+*
A+=ZBBBZEmRESE  RARQ
O REE R AT LT BER - A ARA TH&
10334 18 BR 00 3k BR 5716,680,00078 TLIE 78
&R 77 L EE A Yue Hang Investment
LimitedFid 3% [ 35174 $£1,667,999,998%
ANERFIES R MM, ([ERILET]) ©

RZZEZEF+=AtH  ARAKH
FA B 32 P = T B %% 17 556,000,000 A%
B BB B02258TT © FTBR
185,560,000/8 7T (FHE R EE) 25 AR
DA o 8 T TS RIE (KA 15 3%
1TE AL BB 1D 2177 221,092,000
76 TC 1% ) #998,448,00078 7T 2 5 AR D
ERIERR ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Cont'd)

()

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserve
Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregate amount of
the excess of the nominal value of shares of a company now
comprising the Group over the nominal value of one share of
the Company exchanged as part of the group reorganisation
prior to the completion of the IPO of the Company.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio as
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and lease liabilities. Total equity
comprises all components of equity. The Group's strategy was
to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. In order to
maintain the gearing ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new
debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

22, BERGE(HE)

()

(d)

RETEERE W

B oA

&R B ATAER AR E & QR
EEBEEARARTERAFRBERK
TR AT A E B EH 35 MR AR
RAE] AR EERARER o

EXEE
AEBEREANEEZRBRARERE
BFRBKENRE U HEEEBEE
[\ K AR EE A K AR TE B S AR FEAX
ARGRE  FESBRRTERLEARLS
HAb S0 EH LA

A BT I T R R B A A
W DERBEEKT A RBRORS
R 9 S A ROR TR 0 B
T AR 2 RIBVS T4 - AR R A0
BELANEB LB -

AEEREEABLREREEARAR
B Rt ARBRTEERBLERS
BB AEDAR - REHERETE
X ERLEERE - HEABEERE
M PTAARE D - NEBENRES
HRFEERBLERRQIEKRT - BTH
HREEARLE  AEEAARKET
BERHBE SR - BITHD - UHHE
BRE R HEEENRDETR
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Cont'd)
(d) Capital management (Cont’d)

The Group’s gearing ratio at 31 May 2021 and 2020 was as

22. BXRGEE(HE)
(d) BEXREE(E)
R-TE_—FR_E_TFRA=1+—

follows: A AEENEESBELENT -
As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2021 2020
—EC-—F —ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT
Current liabilities: mENaE
Bank loan IRITER - 6,732
Lease liabilities HEBE 614 531
614 7,263
Non-current liability: ERBNEILE -
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,009 -
Total debt BIEHAEE 1,623 7,263
Total equity R 201,793 100,150
Gearing ratio EEABHE 1% 7%

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) requires contractors on the
list of approved contractors for public works (the “List”) to
maintain such minimum working capital as the Government
may from time to time determine (the “Required Minimum
Working Capital”). A subsidiary of the Company is subject to
the Required Minimum Working Capital as the subsidiary is a
contractor on the List. Except for this, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital

requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and contract assets. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
sound credit ratings, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 May 2021 and 2020, 16% and 15% of the
total trade receivables and contract assets were due from the
Group's largest customer respectively and 88% and 62% of the
total trade receivables and contract assets were due from the
Group's five largest customers respectively.

23. EMEREEREMTIANLTE

AEBEREREBBRETARER RBE
FHEREEER - NEEAZZFRR K
AEBEEEZFZRARMARAN S B EREIE
BER R EREN T

(a EERK

FEERRERZSHTARTETEHN
EEMERAEERZ P B BHELR
B ARENEERREIZREESHE
WHIERANEE - AEERRE MR
SEHEEVAINEERBRAR - AR
SET RERREEEFRNRT MY
BHE - ARERREERREE -

AEEY ERREMEAREAZEE
[ B FELR

ESRUSEAREHEE

AEEMEAZHNEERRTIEXERFR
RERIFE R E - MW IERE T
MITESMENER - B E A&
%xm%EﬁMEkﬂ 2 BEAS
EEPNEERR R-ZE-—Fk=
T-TFRAZ+—R EBREKFIE
MAENEERERN D BI16% X% 15% 578
CSEARATPNEKE  ME5
JEUR B KA B E BTN D 588% &
62% A EB B AAT PRI EWTRIA
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Cont’d)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Cont’d)

Individual credit evaluations are performed as part of the
acceptance procedures for new contracts. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. The
Group generally requires customers to settle progress and final
billings in accordance with contracted terms. Trade receivables
are generally due within 60 days from the date of progress
certificate or the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases.

Given the customers of the Group are mainly the reputable
companies or the companies within the reputable groups
and the Group has not experienced any significant credit
losses in the past, management considered the credit risk to
be immaterial with the expected credit loss rate being close
to zero. As a result, no provision for impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets is necessary during the year
ended 31 May 2021 (2020: Nil).

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
the expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed funding lines from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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23. EMEAREEREMTANATFE
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(b)

=ERER(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81353k izt ¢

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

23. EEREEREMTIANLTFE
(#%)

(b) REBE=E(HE)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

For bank loan subjected to a repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
maturity analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
expected repayment dates with reference to the schedule of
repayments set out in specific repayment term and, separately,

TRIIMAEENE /A ERRE IR
MER T EMEEIBER - WIREAQR
RIRBSRE (BRRANNE(IEF
B BIARIEBR Sl HIR a0 BN ER R =) 51
B R BT R) R A 5 B A] 4% B SR AY R
BT BEHmSH

BRI RIRITEERETENRERE
BIGFFHIRITER MR ERE
RIEHEERBNRERSY - 2F5EE
BEFHRFNEREGHEEK - 2 WE
RABEEERRNAEERE

the impact to the timing of cash outflow if the lender was to P HReRmERENTZE -

invoke its unconditional rights to call the loan with immediate

effect.
31 May 2021
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RZBZ-fRA=+-H
BRRRRRSRY

Morethan  More than Carrying
Within ~ 1yearbut  2years but amount at
1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than 31 May
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2021
i
—B--F
BEFE  BiEF 1A
Ry BFEB  BREE =+-H
BER 2% 5 BB#sF AE  HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhR FhR FhR ThR FhR FAR
Trade and other payables BHREMENTIE 48,252 - - - 48,252 48,252
Lease liabilities HEaE 677 677 368 - 1,722 1,623
48,929 677 368 - 49,974 49,875
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

23. EMEAREEREMTANATFE

(#&)

31 May 2020

(b) REBEEEMR(E)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

R-Z-TFRA=1—H

ARRBRR DR
Morethan ~ More than Carrying
Within ~ 1yearbut  2yearsbut amount at
1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than 31 May
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2020
“T-%F
BEF  EEF A
1FR%  EfEE  ETER =t+-H
REX 1 56 HBBSF wE  WNEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TEL TEL TEX
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNTIE 30,756 1,290 - - 32,046 32,046
Lease liabilities HEAME 539 - - - 539 531
Bank loan RITEH 1313 1313 3,938 984 7,548 6,732
32,608 2,603 3,938 984 40,133 39,309
Adjustments to present cash flows 125 E A BREEM
on bank loan based on lender's TR TEFR
right to demand repayment BERenE 5419 (1313) (3,938) (984) (816) -
38,027 1,290 - - 39317 39,309
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

()

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank loan. Bank loan issued at variable rates
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by the management is set out
in (i) below.

Interest expense derived therefrom is relatively insignificant to
the Group'’s operations; and the Group’s income and operating
cash flows are less dependent on changes in market interest
rates. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group does not have significant cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk, and no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

23. EEREEREMTIANLTFE
(#%)

()

BRI

MERE R AT R T ANRFESRKR
T 8 B ™5 R & 8 K B A9 R
B o NREBEMNEEREERERTE
Ko ARERIZZ N KR HMIRTE
RMEEREREN TR - REEE
ERMASE N EHRE RN T )

EEARITEROME X HHAEEE
BT EREE/ ) RAEEHWA R
REREGREBRDRX MG EEB Y
ot ARAEERRE - AREL
BEABRSRER A FENERR -
gt WEETHRED N o
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R R KizT

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(c) Interestrate risk (Cont’d)

i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group's total borrowings at the end of the reporting
period:

23. EMEAREEREMTANATFE

(#&)
A= Ek ()

()

FIEH#R
TREFINRE RN EBRIRTT

tERF RS

31 May 2021 31 May 2020
ZBE--HHA=+—-H _Z_TFAA=+—H
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BERA= =B EERANE TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEEE
Lease liabilities HEBE ESE:3 BF
5% 4.125%
per annum 1,623 perannum 531
Variable rate borrowings: FEREMEE
Bank loan RITERK g5 5F
0% 4.0%
per annum - perannum 6,732
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(d) Currency risk

(e)

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Group’s currency risk primarily relates to the Group’s
operating activities whose settlements and payments are
denominated in foreign currencies which are different from the
respective group entity’s functional currency.

The foreign currency assets and liabilities held by the Group
are not material compared to the total assets and liabilities.
In terms of the Group’s operating structure, the majority of
the business transactions are denominated in HKS$, and the
proportion of foreign currency transactions is not significant
to the Group. The Group considers that the currency risk of
the Group'’s operations is immaterial due to the relatively low
proportion of the Group’s foreign currency denominated assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, as compared to the Group’s
total assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Hence, no further
analysis is presented.

Fair value measurement

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 May 2021 and 2020.

23. EEBEEREMTIANAFE

(1)
(d) &E¥ER
EHRERES R T AN TERRRR

(e)

&7 2 B ME & R E 8 m)E Eh A Rk

AEEHEEERTEEAEE - LS
B TRE RE RN EEEHE
EREELNEE S Lt

TR -

ARERENIINEEENABREEE
REBBEHELEY TEX - RAKEMNLZ
REMS » KBDEBRXHAE T
18 MINER S LI A KB =X
TEK - AEERS - ARNAEEHIN
BHEEE - A WARRXEARE
BEEE  BfF WARFEXHLHIE
HERIE - H&$'§I¥WE’JT%J—L e 3 A

BA - F o WEZIPE—FS D -
AR EFE
mfz: FR-ZZBEZZFRA=F—

 REBIRK AR AT R &
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4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf & 3R R MisE

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Potential claims

As at 31 May 2021, the Group had work injury cases which
may lead to the potential claims relating to employee’s
compensation and/or personal injuries claims; and such
potential claims may or may not be commenced against the
Group. The directors of the Company considered that the
possibility of any outflow in settling the aforesaid potential
claims is remote as these potential claims are well covered
by insurance and/or full indemnity undertaking given by
the Controlling Shareholder. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for the
contingent liabilities in respect of these potential claims is
considered necessary, after due consideration of each case.

Litigation

At 31 May 2021 and up to the date of this report, a subsidiary
of the Company was a defendant in a legal claim relating to
employee’s compensation case. The directors considered that
the possibility of any economic outflow in settling the legal
claim is remote as the main contractor has agreed to indemnify
the Group’s legal costs and compensation and this claim is
also well covered by full indemnity undertaking given by the
Controlling Shareholder. Accordingly, no provision for the
contingent liabilities in respect of this litigation is necessary,
after due consideration of this case.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 53R R Miz <

25. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the particulars of significant transactions
between the Group and the related parties during the year are as
follows.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

All members of key management personnel of the Group
are the directors of the Company and their remuneration is
disclosed in Note 8.

(b) Financing arrangements with key management
personnel

At 31 May 2021 and 2020, the Group has the following balances
with a director:

25. EXRABARS
BZ S B mRERPOEMM FFTIRENRZ S
RSN FRAEBHBHANERRS
RRET -

(a)

(b)

FTEEEASHEH
AR ETEEEEMEKEHRASKHE
B RENFHHNHESRE -

RIREBAST L HBMEZ

RZEZ—FR_E_FTFRA=1+—
H AEEH-—FZESHNES

As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-F —E-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FAET
Amount due from a director W —REERIE
—Heung Che Kan — A& (i), (i) - 19,877
Lease liability due to a director N —REEHEAE
—Heung Che Kan — A& - 9
Notes: BRRE -

(i)  The amount due from a director was non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The maximum amounts
outstanding during the years ended 31 May 2021 and 2020 were
approximately HK$29,891,000 and HK$29,978,000 respectively.

(i)  The amount due from a director as at 31 May 2020 was settled in
October 2020.

iy ER—FZEZFHEBIFZESHNEG - &
KRR EE @ WIRBERKEE - REZE
ZE - FRZFZZEFRA=1+—
AHEFEREENSTRESEIINA
29,891,000/ 7T }2.29,978,000/8 7T °

(i) RZZE-ZTF+AH RZZ-TFAHA
=t+—HZEKEEFEDLEE -
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25. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

(b) Financing arrangements with key management

(c)

personnel (Cont’d)

In addition, Mr. Heung Che Kan, an executive director of the
Company and the Controlling Shareholder, gave his personal
guarantee to a bank in respect of the banking facilities granted
to the Group. Details of which are set out in Note 19. The
personal guarantee given by Mr. Heung Che Kan was replaced
by a corporate guarantee provided by the Company in
December 2020.

Transactions with related parties

On 20 March 2019, Kat Yue entered into a tenancy agreement
with Mr. Heung Che Kan, pursuant to which Kat Yue agreed to
lease the premise from Mr. Heung Che Kan for office use for a
term of 15 months from 15 March 2019 to 14 June 2020 at a
monthly rental fee of HK$19,200 for the period from 15 March
2019 to 14 June 2019 and HK$20,000 for the period from 15
June 2019 to 14 June 2020. During the year ended 31 May 2021,
Kat Yue made lease payments of approximately HK$9,000 (2020:
HK$240,000) to Mr. Heung Che Kan.
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25. EXEABA X (1)

(b) BEXREBASITVHBMERG

(c)

(%&)

BEAN + AR REITE B IR R M E
FREERTR T AEBMRITRIE R —
MERITIEHEAER - FBEHRWE
19 RZZFZZEF+R - AEHLE
I EATERAAQBH A FIEFRRN

HEBLNRS
R-ZZB—HE=F=+H FHER[E
AR —HAERE - Bl A
BE A SE T ERAEMARERD
B MBE T -NF=-A+HBRE
EZZECEFXATHALEASBTAE
A B-Z—NAFE=ZA+HEBEEC
T—NFNA+THEBERAMEAE19,200%8
T MBEZE-—AFEAATRARE=
T -ZF X A+HHER AMEAE20000%8
T REBE-_ZE-_—FRA=1+—H81t
FE - ERARAEHLESHESER
#99,000% 7C (= F = F F : 240,000%8
TL) °
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26. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

26. AFIBEMBIRAR

POSITION
As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
BsE FHET FET
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B AR ZRE 13 - —*
Current assets REEE
Prepayment TERTFRIA 9 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEULB B A7) 2 FUE 93,884 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRSEED 10,652 51
104,545 51
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary S —FEM B A7) 2 58 = 60
Accrued expenses TEIREM 474 -
474 60
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE(BE)EEE 104,071 9)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE (8E)F8 104,071 9)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRF#E
Share capital &N 22 22,240 —*
Reserves (=] 81,831 9)
TOTAL EQUITY DB 104,071 )

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 9

August 2021.

Heung Che Kan

A& E
Director

EF

RZZ-_—F)\ANLBREFSHENRRE

BT e
Heung Yue Wing
a4 7K
Director
BE
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27. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

28

At 31 May 2021, the directors consider the immediate controlling
party of the Company to be Yue Hang Investment Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

The directors regard the ultimate controlling party of the Company
to be Mr. Heung Che Kan.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MAY 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and new standards, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 May 2021 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

27.

28.

BEERR®RERS
RZZEZ—FRA=+—H BFRAX
A B B H 2  B& 75 A& Yue Hang Investment
Limited - Z A RN RE R 2B S M -
ZEBWEFREAFNMBRE

EEZRA/ARRNSEIZET BASERE

BE_S_—FHA=1+—HI*F
EERMERRKEMIERTE - ¥
AEARRETREENRE

EREFMBHERTERY > HFEGEA
’@E%ﬁiﬁ‘ﬁ S TEE_E-_—FHA=1+—H
IFFERAER AL ERZFUHERE PR
MEVERT AN R - ZFZRRBE T
A RE AR EAEREE o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
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REHERKZ

BHHBEN

BAUGMERFESR - BEGAER 1 January 2021

395 - BB BMEERE 75)7 S —f—HA—H
B TSR 2RI SR 450 IR BB B 5 S 5 42 B
B6R 2 ERT » FIFE B E — F2/E K

ERUBRELERE 1SR BT —F—— 1 April 2021

F N A =1 HZ#Covid-191HFF 97 £ 8 ——FmMA—H

2
BB REENEIR2ER] - BL2ERZ
#Eut
BEGRHERIE
BRI - REEFZFIPEA
%;Q:
JETTEAIHA

FEE
EC

1 January 2022

—T-__F—HA—H

16%L*%Zf§§ #%% s K 1 January 2022

¢ T —F—HA—H
Aﬁ‘l'iEH'J%N?EZf’}ET gﬁg/it/\ﬁ’]— 1 January 2022
—E-—F—H—H

BB REAER2018F E2020F AL 2 1 January 2022
—T-—F—HA—H

BT EREVR2EE] - HEESER 1 January 2023
595 —=%—A—H

BB IETTENA R 1 BB FE .
ZEFF) 2 AREET
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28. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 28. BE_E_—FHA=+—HIL*FE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED EECRHERREROETE «#H
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED TSR RRETREENTE(HE)

31 MAY 2021 (Cont'd)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

REHERKZ
BHPEEX
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice BABFTERNE 1R RE BV SRS 2R 1 January 2023
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies BEBREF LR ZIER] » SFHHREE —E-=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting ~ BB EFIAERIESS 2 (85] + @525 1 January 2023
Estimates HE# —E_=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to BAGTEE 12K B8R - #HE—XF 1 January 2023
assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction &4 8 &E % B (Z1HE 5 B 1E —E-=%—A—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the AEBEEZFFEZERRBHNERER
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of HEBNEE 25BHERARMNZFE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them BHESET AT AP e 4R E MR ELEER
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial 2o
statements.
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4 FINANCIAL SUMMARY Bf i§ 41 &

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is as follows.

BEELT o

Year ended 31 May
BELA=t—-RLEE

AEERSZRABYRFENFRE  BEERAE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —T-TFE —T-HF —T-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT FAT FAT FAT
RESULTS ES

Revenue & 345,618 313,650 297,302 269,630 216,062
Gross profit EF 56,012 51,034 52,837 42,728 28,446
Profit before taxation R A% AR F 45,435 34,870 36,123 39,325 26,277

Profit and total comprehensive & i Kl &
income for the year EHEWE B 37,635 28,113 28,752 32,988 22,340

As at 31 May
REA=+—H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--—F —T-F ZE-NF ZE-NF ZZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FAT FAT FAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 265,468 152,341 140,305 118,575 54,097
Total liabilities FEN=N 63,675 52,191 58,268 65,290 33,800
Net assets BEFHE 201,793 100,150 82,037 53,285 20,297
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